





Environmental, Social and Governance Report

No Practice of Forced Labour

The employees’ rest time is well respected. To prevent forced
overtime work, arrangements of necessary overtime must be
agreed by the employees voluntarily.

Pregnant Women

In the Vietnam factory, we offer 6 months’ paid maternity leave
and the original job positiong is available to the employees upon
their return. Within the “Staff handbook”, special support policy
clearly states the major rights of the female employees. Labels
are provided to those female workers who are pregnant in order
to alert others to provide special help to them.

Subsidies are provided to the female employees in case they
have children aged 1 to 6 years old who live in Binh Duong
Province, Vietnam.

Cultural activities

Most of our employees are women, the Group does its best to
ensure our female staff are happy while they are working for the
Group, and we respect work and life balance.

During the year, the Group organized a wide range of activities
including training regarding reproductive health care, health
care of women, health and welfare of pregnant women and
other health topics. We promote team spirit and frequent
communication among all levels of the employees of the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE HE8RESIHS

Development and Training

We encourage our employees to grow and succeed with
us. That's why we often offer opportunities that foster our
employees’ leadership skills and professional development.

We stick firmly to our “Training Policy” to facilitate development of
the potential of our staff, and the Group conducts regular internal
and external training course in the following topics: the Group’s
internal policy, employee health and safety, food safety, kitchen
management, employees’ complaints handling, etc. We maintain
a schedule of different kinds of training which is prepared one
year in advance. In the determination of the training schedule, we
consider the feedbacks provided by our employees.

All new joiners receive an induction training on their first day of
employment.

We also offer robust training to our employees on the proper use
of machinery. It helps to minimise workforce accidents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Employee Feedback

Our continuous improvement relies on our employees’ valuable
feedback. If our staff have any complaints, they can do so in
written form and place it in the Suggestions Box at the office
building. The Human Resources Department is responsible for
handling the cases of complaints and investigating the causes
of the complaints. We always listen to our employees and
understand the needs of our employees.

Supply Chain

Most of our suppliers are designated by our customers, but the
Group values the good relationship and effective communication
with its suppliers. While selecting the suppliers, we consider and
assess the background, qualifications, expertise, experience,
financial status, and professionalism, etc. of the suppliers. Social
and environmental criteria play a key role in supplier selection and
evaluation. The Group reviews the performance of the existing
suppliers and may source alternative suppliers, if necessary.

Product responsibility

The Group aims to provide the highest quality standard of
services. The Group complies with the relevant laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products provided by us. The Group
has established relevant policies which cover service quality,
intellectual property and privacy. In respect of service quality, the
Group confirms the goods quality with its customers to make
sure that the goods meet the customers’ requirements. At our
factory in Vietnam, we set up the product quality inspection team
that handles the inspection of the quality of the products. In this
respect, the brand owners also have their quality control teams
to come and check whether the quality of the products are up to
the standard.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The duty of the Board is to manage the Group in a responsible
and effective manner and every Director has to carry out his/
her duty in good faith and achieve the standard of any prevailing
applicable laws and regulations and act in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. During the year under review,
the members of the Board included:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey (Passed away on 14 April 2016)
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian

Mr. Mumma, Adin David (Appointed effective on 1 October 2016)
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu
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Corporate Governance Report

PREBHE

Non-executive Directors: FHITES:

Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P. BIKIEA A RefesE ATt
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel PR & S A&

Independent non-executive Directors: BYEHTES:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny BRI E

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven WFITHRE

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel PREBELZ+

The Directors’ biographies and the relationship among the ZBEZ=BENEESKERZME (EH)HNAE
Board members, if any, are set out in “Directors and Senior WIEEZELRSEBEERAEREE] - BRIZEENSE
Management Profiles” of this annual report. Save as disclosed EEABRBE]IEESEIN EE 2 W ET([AIH
in the “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”, there is no 5+ %% - KikskHEA AHBEE-
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)

among the Directors.

Directors’ Attendance Records EEEgRHELR

The records of attendance of individual Directors at the Board THRESESREUBEFEARTZEES SR
meetings and annual general meeting, and relevant committee MRRBERG URABZESKERDES
members at Board committee meetings held during the year EART7EEZESSR o HRLEER:

under review are set out in the following table:

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

HE/BITRE

Audit Nomination = Remuneration Annual General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
E3pg 3¢ ENZEE REZEE FMz8e RREEAE
Executive Directors #H{TEE
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey PR &1 % £ N/ATE A N/ATE A N/AT i N/AT i A N/AT i F
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen & %% % £ 4/4 N/ATiE A N/AT 8 A 1/1 11
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 17 B 46 4% 4 4/4 N/AT &R N/AT &R NATE R 111
Mr. Mumma, Adin David & A & %t 42 2/2 N/AT i FB N/ATE A N/ATE A N/ATE R
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu E1& L £ 4/4 N/AT i B N/AT i N/ATiE A 11
Non-executive Directors F#H{TEE
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.

FKEESE REFEE APHT 4/4 2/2 11 N/ATE A il
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel BRJ%& X 5t & 4/4 N/AT i FB 11 N/ATE A 11
Independent non-executive Directors B ¥ HTES
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 3% IF %t £ 4/4 2/2 1 11 11
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven # 1T 5t & 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel FR % & &+ 4/4 2/2 17 1 11
T The director passed away on 14 April 2016 ' REERZE—FHATMART
2 The director was appointed with effect from 1 October 2016 ? ZEEMEZEEZT—FTA—HRBENR
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PFRESHES

Apart from the above regular Board meetings of the year, the
Board will meet on other occasions when a Board level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of
agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each Board meeting. The Board has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment, succession
planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim financial statements for Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules and
regulations.

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate strategic
development and ensuring the business operations are properly
monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all policy
matters and material transactions of the Group.

The Board delegates the day-to-day operations to general
managers and department heads who are responsible for
different business functional units of the operations of the Group.

Besides, to assist the Board in discharge of its duty, the Board
established the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee and their scope of duties and terms of
reference were discussed and approved in the Board meetings.

Non-executive Directors

All the non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term of three years that are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Board has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of their
independence and satisfied that their independence up to the
date of this report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. During the year under review, relevant materials on
legislative and regulatory updates were circulated to all Directors,
namely Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian,
Mr. Mumma Adin David, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu, Mr. Chow Wing-
kin, Anthony, Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel, Mr. Tam King-ching,
Kenny, Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven and Ms. Chan Mei-bo,
Mabel, as to keep them abreast of any changes to the regulations
and disclosure obligations. Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr.
Kimmel, Phillip Brian, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu and Mr. Chan Ho-man,
Daniel also attended relevant training courses on management,
duties and responsibilities of a director and/or other topics
organized by external professional bodies during the year under
review to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy since 2000
with an aim to indemnify its Directors and senior executives from
any losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses arising
from, including but not limited to, any proceedings brought
against them during the performance of their duties pursuant
to their respective service agreements entered into with the
Company.
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PFRESHES

PROCEEDINGS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Board considers that all meetings should be properly
convened. With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the
Chairman of the Board takes the lead to ensure that Board
meetings and Board committee meetings are convened in
accordance with the requirements set out in the bye-laws of
the Company, the terms of reference of the respective Board
committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for
drawing up and approving the agenda for each meeting after
consultation with all the Directors and the Company Secretary.
Prior notice of each regular Board meeting is given to all the
Directors at least 14 days in advance.

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition,
special Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, of all the
Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to
provide sufficient notice to give all the Directors an opportunity to
attend. For special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meetings record in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board, including all concerns raised
by the Directors and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of
all Board meetings and Board committee meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and are available for inspection by any
Director, auditors or any relevant eligible parties who can have
access to such minutes.
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Corporate Governance Report

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Under the code provision B.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company
should establish a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties.

The principal role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management
of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, such as any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee consisted of an
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors
as set out below:

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven (Chairman)
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Directors with reference to the
factors including salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the operation model where it performs an advisory
role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final authority
to approve the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the remuneration packages of the Directors are fair
and reasonable and has recommended the same for approval by
the Board. Details of the emolument policy of the Directors are
set out on page 74 of this report.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management
(excluding Directors) by band for the year ended 31 March 2017
is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of individuals

HK$0 to HK$500,000 2
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
include to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board on a regular basis and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes. The Board considers
the past performance and qualification of the candidates
for Directors, general market conditions and the Company’s
bye-laws in selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship.

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy with effect
from 1 September 2013. The policy sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance. In determining the Board’s
composition, the Nomination Committee will consider board
diversity in terms of, among other things, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on merit, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the implementation of the diversity policy and review the same as
appropriate.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee consisted of two
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors as set out below:

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel (Chairman)!
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Nomination Committee considered and resolved that all
the existing Directors shall be recommended to be retained by
the Company. Further, in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws and as resolved by the Nomination Committee, Mdm.
Huang Hsiu-chuan, Helen, Mr. Mumma, Adin David, Mr. Yung
Tse-kwong, Steven will retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As required by Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference, which deal clearly with its authority
and duties. Its principal duties are to review and supervise the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal control systems.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit
Committee consisted of a non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny (Chairman)
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, interim and annual
reports, the accounting principles and practices adopted and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee also reviewed
and approved the external auditor’'s remuneration and terms of
engagement and recommended the Board for re-appointment of
the external auditor.

U Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey, who was the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee, passed away on 14 April 2016. And Mr.
Chan Ho-man, Daniel was appointed as the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 29 June 2016.
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The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties, including:

° To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

° To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

° To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements,
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

The Audit Committee considered that the existing proposed
terms in relation to the appointment of the Group’s external
auditor are fair and reasonable.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material
adverse effect on the Group. During the year under review, the
fees payable to the Company’s external auditor for audit services
and non-audit services were HK$2,069,000 and HK$960,000,
respectively. The non-audit services relate primarily to tax
compliance and consultancy services.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial year,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting
period and of their financial performance and cash flows for
that year in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Listing Rules. The Directors have prepared the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 on a going
concern basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which reflect the financial position of the
Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The Directors’ responsibilities and the responsibilities of the
independent auditor with respect to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2017 are set out on pages 81 to 90 of this
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognizes its responsibility for maintaining an
adequate and sound enterprise risk management and internal
control system and through the Audit Committee and, if
necessary, an external independent professionals to provide
internal control services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness
of these systems at least annually, covering material controls,
including financial, operational, compliance and strategic risk
control functions. The Board understands that such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted an annual review of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates
any material issues identified to the Board.

During the year under review, the Company appointed Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Risk Assurance Limited (“Baker Tilly”), an external
independent professionals to:

° assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

° independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by Baker Tilly to enhance the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of
the Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and
recommendations of Baker Tilly as well as the comments of the
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and
risk management systems effective and adequate.
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Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group established its enterprise risk management framework
during the year. While the Board has the overall responsibility to
ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the
Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively.
The Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee
that oversight risk management and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the following principal
risks of the Group were identified and classified into strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks.
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Risk Areas Principal Risks Bk EE FERB

Strategic Risks Risk of economic recession EagigEali KEZIRE R
Unstable political environment of some BPRER PN EEREMTE
of the countries where we operate our HETRROEBCARRIETEE
production plants

Operational Risks No significant risks identified ZER R AR H E AR

Financial Risks Risk of inflation/deflation B % A B BAR B HE R B

Compliance Risks No significant risks identified A RE R ARk Al EAKER
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Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced
to and conducted by Baker Tilly. The Group adopts risk
management policy and procedure (the “Risk Management
Policy”) and maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified
major risks of the Group. The risk register provides the Board,
the Audit Committee, and management with a profile of its major
risks and records management’s action taken to mitigate the
relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on
its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group.
The risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk
owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and
alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that they can
take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management on
an ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic
management meeting is held to update the progress of risk
monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensure that
risk management forms part of the daily business operation
processes in order to align risk management with corporate goals
in an effective manner.
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The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its
needs. Nevertheless, the directors will continue to review at least
annually the need for an internal audit function.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“‘SFO”). The internal
control mechanism includes information flow and reporting
processes, confidentiality arrangements, disclosure procedures,
and staff training arrangements, etc.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor
relations and communications with its investors. An intensive
communications channel has been maintained with the media,
analysts and fund managers through one-on-one meeting,
road shows and conferences. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s development.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sets high priority in communicating with
shareholders and investors. Regular meetings with institutional
shareholders and general presentation of financial results are
made when financial results are announced. The Company also
provides extensive information in its annual report, interim report
and announcements.

The Board endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders.
In annual general meeting, the chairman of the Board and the
chairman of each committee are required to attend and answer
questions from shareholders in respect of the matters that they
are responsible and accountable for. In addition, a representative
of the Company’s external auditors is requested to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report,
accounting policies and auditor independence.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special
general meeting (“SGM”) provide good opportunities for
shareholders to express their views and ask Directors and
management questions regarding the Company. All shareholders
of the Company receive the annual report, circulars and notices
of AGM and SGM and other corporate communications.
Separate resolutions are required at general meetings on each
distinct issue. Each shareholder is permitted to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote in his stead.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
NOMINATE A DIRECTOR, MAKE PROPOSALS
AND CONVENE GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, if a shareholder,
who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
convened to deal with appointment/election of director(s), wishes
to propose a person (other than the shareholder himself/herself)
for election as a director of the Company, the shareholder must
deposit a written notice to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company. Details for nominating candidates
to stand for election as a director are set out in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company website.

(i) Any one or more shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100
shareholders may submit a written request to make proposals
or move a resolution at a general meeting; or a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting. Such request must be deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
for the attention of the company secretary of the Company, not
less than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Details of the
requirements and procedures for making proposals or moving
a resolution at a general meeting are set out in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company website.

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office and at its
principal place of business in Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Details
of the requirements and procedures for convening general
meetings are set out in the Corporate Governance section of the
Company website.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board of the Company by addressing them to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at 17th Floor, Empress Plaza, 17-19 Chatham Road South,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or by email to
kingmkra@netvigator.com for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the company secretary will
forward:

1. communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the executive Directors of the Company;

2. communications relating to matters within a Board
committee’s area of responsibility to the chairman of the
appropriate committee; and

3. communications relating to ordinary business matters, such
as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to the appropriate
management of the Company.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all voting at the Company’s general
meetings shall be conducted by poll. The Company’s bye-laws
have set out the procedures and requirements of voting by poll.
Such voting procedure would be explained by the Chairman at
the commencement of the general meeting of shareholders.

CODE OF CONDUCT

To enhance the standards of employees, the Company has
set out standards of professional and ethical conduct for
all employees of the Group. The employees at all levels are
expected to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and
responsible manner.

CONCLUSION

The Company will continue its enduring effort in reviewing the
corporate governance practices from time to time and will try its
best in maintaining, strengthening and improving the standard
and quality of the Company’s corporate governance to meet with
the continuous changing environment and for the benefit of the
shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Position held

B

Number of
years of
service

ERFH

EFRNEEEERASEF

Business experience

BRER

Huang Hsiu-duan,
Helen
B

Kimmel, Phillip Brian
fRE

Mumma, Adin David
SR

60

65

67

Executive director and

Chief Executive Officer
(appointed on 29 June 2016)
HITESRITHAR
(RZE—EXA
“+NBEZE)

Executive director

RITES

Executive director
(appointed on 1 October
2016)

WITES (RZE-—RF
+A-BEZT)

36

23

Madam Huang is a co-founder of the Group. She is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and
serves as a director for the subsidiaries of the Company. She
is responsible for formulating the overall business strategies
and future development plans for the Group, the purchasing
function and human resources management of the Group.
Madam Huang has more than 40 years’ experience in the
footwear industry. Madam Huang is the mother of Ms. Chen
Zi-yun, Fiona Apple and Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares.
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BRARER?E ARERBRANERER -EXLARR
AWFREXER BRI RRFEMERBREZEREZER-

Mr. Kimmel has been with the Group since 1994. He is
responsible for the Group’s sales and marketing, customer
relations. Mr. Kimmel has more than 41 years’ extensive
experience in the footwear industry. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree from the University of Southern California and a
Master's degree from the University of Washington in China
Regional Studies.
FAEER-ANEENMATEE - FEEERRECEHHERE
REFUASE MALEHEZRRBNF L EERR &
BEZFERAMMNASZELBUREREASHEARRE LS
fi

Mr. Mumma is also an executive vice president of the Group.
He is in charge of the Group’s production and customer
relations. Mr. Mumma has over 34 years’ experience in the
footwear industry. Since 2000, he has started to provide
advice to the Company including the feasibility studies on
new projects, organizational structure, transition to lean
manufacturing system and labour matters. Mr. Mumma holds
a bachelor’s degree of Arts from the Millersville State College
in 1971.
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BRER

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service
®E R B EREFY
Wong Hei-chiu 50 Executive director 9
BEH HITEE
58 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Mr. Wong is also the chief financial officer of the Group and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong is responsible
for the supervision and management of the Group's overall
financial matters and investor relations. Mr. Wong holds an
Executive Master's degree in business administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor's
degree in business administration from Lingnan University,
Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising),
a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Mr. Wong has over 26 years of corporate finance and financial
management experience in Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to
joining the Group in 2008, Mr. Wong has worked as the group
financial controller and company secretary in a Hong Kong
listed electronics manufacturing company for over 8 years;
and as the finance director and company secretary in another
Hong Kong listed wholesale and distribution company for over
4 years. Mr. Wong was also an independent non-executive
director of Hong Wei (Asia) Holdings Company Limited, a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange, during the period from December 2013 to June
2016.
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Chow Wing-kin, 67 Non-executive director 23 Mr. Chow serves as a member of the Nomination Committee
Anthony, SBS, J.P. FHTES and the Audit Committee of the Company.
K BAEERFAAIREEEGRERZEGINE:

BEAEE AT#HL

Mr. Chow is a solicitor admitted to practise in Hong Kong
and England and Wales. He has been a practising solicitor
in Hong Kong for over 37 years and is currently a senior
consultant of the law firm Messrs. Guantao & Chow Solicitors
and Notaries. His principal areas of practice include corporate
and commercial, property law, probate and civil litigation. Mr.
Chow is a China-Appointed Attesting Officer and member
of South China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission. He is the Deputy Chairman of the board of
stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey Club. He is also an
independent non-executive director of MTR Corporation
Limited and S.F. Holdings Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Maanshan Dingtai Rare Earth & New Materials Co., Ltd),
both of which are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and Shenzhen Stock Exchange respectively.
Mr. Chow is the Chairman of the Process Review Panel of
Financial Reporting Council and a member of The Exchange
Fund Advisory Committee and The EFAC Governance Sub-
committee of Hong Kong Monetary Authority. Mr. Chow was
a non-executive director of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings
Limited (formerly known as China City Construction Group
Holdings Limited) during the period from February 2015 to
October 2016 and an independent non-executive director
of Link Asset Management Limited as manager of Link Real
Estate Investment Trust during the period from May 2006 to
May 2015 and Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited during the
period from September 2004 to June 2016, all of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is the
former president of the Law Society of Hong Kong and was
the chairman of the Process Review Panel for the Securities
and Futures Commission.
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Chan Ho-man, 62 Non-executive director and 21 Mr. Chan has been with the Group since 1996. He is
Daniel Chairman (appointed on 29 responsible for formulate, advising the management on the
BRE June 2016) corporate strategy and policy development. Mr. Chan also
FHRTEEREIR serves as the Chairman of the Nomination Committee with
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effect from 29 June 2016.
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Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan is
also the company secretary of Kin Yat Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan has more than 38 years’ accounting and corporate
finance experience in Hong Kong.
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Tam King-ching, 68 Independent 23 Mr. Tam serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Kenny non-executive director and a member of each of the Nomination Committee and
BERIE BUFHTES Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a practising

Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of Chartered Professional
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tam is serving as a
member of the Small and Medium Practitioners Committee
and the Insolvency SD Vetting Committee in the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a
past president of The Society of Chinese Accountants and
Auditors. Mr. Tam also serves as an independent non-
executive director of eight other listed companies on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, namely, Shougang Concord
Grand (Group) Limited, CCT Fortis Holdings Limited, Starlite
Holdings Limited, Hong Kong Shanghai Alliance Holdings
Limited (formerly Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited),
BeijingWest Industries International Limited, West China
Cement Limited, CCT Land Holdings Limited and Wisdom
Education International Holdings Company Limited.
ERERTAREREE G IR NREEE G FMERS
KB - RABEHMEEHM RABESHNLEZERER
RMERZABERHEXCHMACER -BLERERS
AN ER N EHERERERREERTEERRARES
RE-BRABAREAGHARGHEER -BLEMHEL D
NERBRFAFER LT AR (MEREA (RE)ERAR:
TEEREEERAR EXSBARLAR EEMAEKRE
BAA (FIBERESEERAR) RAEIRBERAR.
HEEBKEERAR PRENWEEARAARERHEH
BRERERLR) 2 BUFHTES-
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EFRNREEEERASEF

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
®E R B TREH BEER
Yung Tse-kwong, 67 Independent 12 Mr. Yung serves as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Steven non-executive director Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee
I BUFHTES and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung
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was the former Chief Executive Officer of Imagi International
Holdings Limited and was the former Chairman of Clear
Media Limited, both of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. As Managing Partner of Glocal LLC,
Mr. Yung has over 36 years’ management experience from
leading multinational companies in the media, entertainment,
consumer and retail industries. Mr. Yung began his career as a
producer with Hong Kong Commercial Broadcasting Company
Limited and has since held various senior management
positions at The Coca-Cola Company in the United States
of America and Asia, served as Regional Managing Director
of AC Nielsen China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Korea and
as President of Nielsen Media International. He had been a
director of the Cable and Satellite Broadcasting Association
of Asia (CASBAA), and is currently a Director of the Child
Development Matching Fund.
REERRLAFMEEG TR UREREEGRREZE
EHE - RALAREFEARZRERAR ZAETHAR 1
REEPINERERRAZAEER MEIRBIMERL
e {ERGlocal LLCZ EBABA HAELEBEBBBIFRE
FERACR BRRE RE RERTERBLERLR K
FENBEEREEREERARAR ERNRIEE B
BARSREERTMNBETOALARERZESRERR
i BEEBRHRESREATE A GEREE K
Nielsen Media International 2 #82 - %% & ff Cable and Satellite
Broadcasting Association of Asia (CASBAA/E £ + 35 A 7 & %
REHESES-



Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EFRNEEEERASEF

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
®E R B TREY BHELH
Chan Mei-bo, Mabel 45 Independent 6 Ms. Chan serves as a member of each of the Audit
BEZE non-executive director Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
BUFHITES Committee of the Company. Ms. Chan is the founder of

Mabel Chan & Co, Certified Public Accountants (Practicing)
and became the deputy managing partner of Grant Thornton
Limited in 2015. Ms. Chan has over 24 years’ experience
in professional accounting field in Hong Kong. She holds a
master degree of business administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 2000 and a degree of
Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in accountancy from City Polytechnic
of Hong Kong (now known as City University of Hong Kong) in
1993. Ms. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing)
in Hong Kong, a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a council member and an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and an associate member of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Ms. Chan
is a certified tax adviser and a member of The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong in 2010. She is the past president
of The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors, past
president and council member of the Association of Women
Accountants (Hong Kong), and a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Ms. Chan is also a member of the
Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal Panel, a member of Appeal
Panel (Housing), a member of the CreateSmart Initiative
Vetting Committee appointed by the Secretary for Commerce
and Economic Development of Hong Kong, a member of the
Council of the Hong Kong Baptist University and president
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
December 2016.
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64 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Ms. Chan currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of another listed company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, namely Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. Ms.
Chan was an independent non-executive director of a listed
company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, namely
China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited during the period
from December 2011 to December 2014 and of another
listed company on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange, namely South China Assets Holdings Limited
during the period from May 2013 to March 2017.
BRLTRRETRBRMER LTINS —RRR (MR
BROBRARNBIFHNTES RLTA—RRBRAE
RETZRANBUFATES PR _Z——FT_AZEC
T-NE+ - ABRATEGMERERAANBUIFNGTE
EVR-_F-ZFRAZ-_F+E-ANREBRAAE
RETOS-—MAR (MEEEEERERAR) BEBULHE
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EFRNEEEEASEF

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
®E R B TREH BEER
Hong Kong Office
EBRNRER
Lai Chi-hang, David 50 Group 24 Mr. David Lai has been with the Group since 1993. He
REE financial controller is responsible for the Group’s accounting and financial
SEMBRE management. Mr. Lai holds a Master's degree in business
administration from University of Wales. He has more than
28 years' experience in auditing, financial accounting and
financial management.
FEEER-ANZFNMAREE - AEARB 2GR
BEE - RAARARANAEZIRERETEN EHHEA
BERY MBEHARMBERLR-
PRC base
FEAEE
Yang Mu Lang 56 Senior manager 13 Mr. Yang Mu Lang has been with the Group since 2004. He
PV N: HITHE is in charge of the factory operation in Zhuhai. Mr. Yang has
more than 33 years' experience in footwear factory.
BARELEER004EMALEE FEREHRER EEH
FEEEERABANE AR
South Asia base
HIEE
Hsu Ming-hsien, 58 Vice president 183 Mr. Jack Hsu has been with the Group since 2004. He is in

Jack
FRE

BlgE

charge of the factory production in Vietnam and also factory
operations in Cambodia. Mr. Hsu has more than 35 years’
experience in the footwear industry.

ARABEEER _SEMEMAAEE - TEAEHER 4R
FHRRERBRB EE T AEEREXBEBBBF L
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#a

Age
£

Business experience

BRER

Chen Zi-yun,
Fiona Apple
BF=

Chen Yi-wu,
Ares
[FS

34

25

Number of
years of
Position held service
B EREY
Assistant to Chief Executive 10
Officer
THBH R
Assistant Vice president 1

PEBBHY
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Ms. Fiona Apple Chen has been with the Group since
2007. She was previously the Managing Director and was
in charge of the Group’s retailing business. She assists the
Chief Executive Officer for the implementation of corporate
strategies and coordination among different departments
and business units of the Group. She is responsible for the
overall administration and management information systems
of the Group and oversees the Group’s business operation in
Taiwan. She also serves as a director for the subsidiaries of
the Company. She holds a Bachelor's degree from National
Taiwan University in International Business. After graduation,
she studied footwear design at De Montfort University, the
United Kingdom. Ms. Chen is a daughter of Madam Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen and a sister of Mr. Chen Yi-wu Ares.
BF=MEB-ZSLEMAREE -RAANAEZLLE
BEASRENTEEXR -RRBHTHASEELEEBRE
BRARAREXBREN ROHA - REEASENBRITR
HEREARRREERRERENEREE - RNMRART
SENBRARIES REARVABREEL B T
BB - 2% 7 2B De Montfort University/ & R & -
FRERSH -RIBAERRR T 2R YAREE .
HIBE A o

Mr. Ares Chen joined the Group in 2016. Mr. Chen assists
executive vice presidents for the Group’s production and
customer relations. He holds a bachelor’s degree of Arts in
Economics from Tamkang University. After graduation, he
continues to further his studies a master's degree in Business
Psychology at University of Leeds, United Kingdom. Mr. Chen
is the son of Madam Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen and a brother of
Ms. Chen Zi-yun, Fiona Apple.
BEBERER_Z-—NEMAREE BR % E BT HEIB
ERAEENEEREFBGE REARNIASHESRE L2
fii-2%% BRERMNZASEEEREOEEREL B -
BRECREAMALIZF YARF=NMEMNFR.



The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
39 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the principal activities of the Group during the
year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the business, a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year 2017, and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, are provided in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management

Discussion and Analysis”, and “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” set out on pages 6 to 37 of this annual

report.

For the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this
report, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group
complied with applicable laws, rules and regulations in all material
respects.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 91 to 231.

Report of the Directors
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An interim dividend of HK4.2 cents per ordinary share and a
special dividend of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share were paid
on 25 January 2017. The Directors recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK5.5 cents per ordinary share and a
special dividend of HK4.5 cents per ordinary share in respect of
the year to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members on 7 September 2017. Details are set out in note
18 to the financial statements. Subject to the passing of the
relevant resolutions at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, such dividends will be payable on or about 26
September 2017 in cash in Hong Kong dollars.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled
to be held on Tuesday, 29 August 2017. For determining the
entittement to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 24 August 2017 to Tuesday, 29 August 2017, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, all duly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 23 August 2017.

Entitlement to the proposed final and special dividends

The record date for entitlement to the proposed final and special
dividends is Thursday, 7 September 2017. For determining the
entitlement to the proposed final and special dividends, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
5 September 2017 to Thursday, 7 September 2017, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final and special
dividends, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 4 September
2017.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of AEBMPRBERMAMBEEz£EREERARE
the Group for the last five financial years is set out below. This ZHEHFW T - A B W IERBERH B RER 2
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements. — 5 o

Results

Report of the Directors
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MBERME

Year ended 31 March BZE=FA=+—HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—Eg-t& Z—T-RF —FT-hFf —T-@OF —FT-=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET FET FET FET
(Re-presented)  (Re-presented)  (Re-presented)  (Re-presented)
(f25%5) (#=&E5) (=&5) (B&E75)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 5B &R & 278
REVENUE W& 1,830,267 2,308,161 2,326,399 1,868,663 1,766,758
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS Bk 7% Bl s R4 4B 48 & £ 75 163,083 152,797 124,952 109,281 138,798
Income tax expense FT15 i 5 X (14,631) (12,743) (12,853) (13,515) (16,540)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REFELEER 2 F N 148,452 140,054 112,099 95,766 122,258
DISCONTINUED OPERATION B & IF R & #7%
Loss for the year from discontinued operation
REERIEREEK 2FAESE (17,099) (20,682) (22,785) (28,174) (28,288)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4£E A3 7| 131,353 119,372 89,314 67,592 93,970
Attributable to: 71| & T8 fE(h :
Equity holders of the Company
ARNFIERIFEA 132,556 120,205 92,480 67,592 93,970
Non-controlling interests FF 1% i% #E 25 (1,203) (833) (3,166) = =
131,353 119,372 89,314 67,592 93,970
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Assets and liabilities

EEREE
As at 31 March R= A =+—H

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+F —E—REF —hHE — & —E—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FAT FAT FHET FAET
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
mE - B REE 338,037 523,592 522,949 453,019 403,752
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
A L EFKIE 51,587 86,579 78,159 55,321 56,890
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
EME 136,484 123,247 115,692 110,694 93,845
DEPOSITS
e 3,916 22,440 24,793 21,625 1,862
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
S NRIIRE 57,558 = = = =
INVESTMENTS IN CLUB MEMBERSHIPS
SMEERE 870 887 906 925 941
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
AHERE 530 489 892 1,490 2,399
CURRENT ASSETS & & 1,152,205 1,078,747 1,015,636 937,624 925,409
TOTAL ASSETS @& & 1,741,487 1,835,981 1,759,027 1,580,698 1,485,098
CURRENT LIABILITIES i@ & f& (556,115)  (664,684)  (622,281)  (519,405)  (428,432)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3En @ & & (19,877) (16,878) (20,228) (18,942) (14,844)
TOTAL LIABILITIES & & & (575,992)  (681,562)  (642,509)  (538,347)  (443,276)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 3F#% B& ## 25 (19,638) (22,324) (19,335) = =
1,145,557 1,132,095 1,097,183 1,042,351 1,041,822
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor,
are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled its
3,406,000 shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The directors considered that the share
repurchases are beneficial to the shareholders of the Company
who retain their investments in the Company. Details of the share
repurchases are set out below:

Number of shares

Highest price

Report of the Directors
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BrBEER

ARBZARAASERE-AN-FREER
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Aggregate
consideration

Lowest price (excluding

repurchased per share per share  transaction cost)

REZASE

Month/Year B /& BEzROEE BRESE BERERE (TEERZERE)
HKS BT HKS T HK$'000 T 7T

June 2016 —Z—/RE X 100,000 1.68 1.67 168
July 2016 —ZE— R Ft A 2,382,000 1.94 1.75 4,404
October 2016 —Z—NF+ A 924,000 1.90 1.70 1,704
Total &5t 3,406,000 6,276
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Further details of these transactions are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$361,931,000, of which
HK$38,483,000 and HK$31,486,000 have been proposed as a
final dividend and a special dividend, respectively, for the year
after the reporting period. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$119,059,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$240,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the Group’s sales to the five largest
customers accounted for 93.5% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 31.5%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey (passed away on 14 April 2016)
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian
Mr. Mumma, Adin David
(appointed with effect from 1 October 2016)
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.p.
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

Pursuant to bye-law 86(2) of the bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Mumma, Adin David, who was appointed as an executive director
with effect from 1 October 2016, will hold office only until the
forthcoming annual general meeting, and will retire from office
and offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. In addition, pursuant to bye-law 87 of the bye-laws
of the Company, Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen and Mr. Yung
Tse-kwong, Steven will retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and subject to approval by the
Company’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,

responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the bye-laws of the Company, the Directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty in their respective offices. The
Company has maintained appropriate directors liability insurance
in respect of legal action against the Directors during the year
ended 31 March 2017.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

The related party transactions as set out in note 33 to the
financial statements constitute connected transactions of the
Company exempted from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has
complied with the applicable disclosure requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Apart from those contracts disclosed in
note 33 to the financial statements, no Director nor a connected
entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Report of the Directors
EFEHE

EENRS ZHIASHN2ER

BTG SRR P SE3BE T 2 BB h X H R AR E 2
RER S BREHBRET ETRAEVIAZES
R A ¥R - D SIBSL AR AL 2 FE © AR B HERR
BEETEMRANFEAT ZERBERTE - R
HRMEBARBEEIN TR SESHEFTZH
BALTEARRBREAAN B AR AT LA RN
SEEBEEABER LIRS ZHHEHNF L
ERAEREEEN -

ESERROREEKRGFER 2ES

5979

RZB—tF=A=+—H BARAIREEZEFR
HERGIFI2HAFE 2 ELMAIR EFERA
NEREBEEE (EXREFRAEG (1F
BB P ) EXVED) Z B S AR B8 B £0 o B
BRGSAR IREBELEMBETAZSE ﬂm%
R BESTR (MRERI) AHNEAR

Rz s RORRITN

FEEXREBERAR FH 2017 715}



Report of the Directors
EFEHE

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

RRBEBRZHER:

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEBROBE - SORERLE

Through Percentage
Directly spouse Through of the
beneficially or minor controlled Company’s
owned children corporation Total issued shares
BART
EBERESR BRTRGZ
Name of director EE# & HEERES RAEEFLZ BBIEHLE @t B
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen & 7% 22 &= 500,000 265,764,041 34,507,500 300,771,541 42.99
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(PfEE1) (FffE2)
Mr. Kimmel Phillip Brian 17 R {4 % & 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.14
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel B & 3256 & 5,170,000 - - 5,170,000 0.74
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu & 15 #8 5¢ 4 2,755,000 - - 2,755,000 0.39
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P. 3,088,000 - - 3,088,000 0.44
BB EE  genes ATHt
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny & IE 7t 4 510,000 - - 510,000 0.07
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven X FiT 4 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000 0.23
Notes: B =5

76

These shares comprised (i) 1,804,000 shares held by the late Mr.
Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey, which were transmitted to the children
of the late Mr. Chen and Mdm. Huang subsequent to 31 March
2017, and (i) 263,960,041 shares held by King Strike Limited,
which was owned by the late Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey as to
77.45% and Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen as to 22.55%. Mdm.
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen is the widow of the late Mr. Chen who
passed away on 14 April 2016. The 77.45% of King Strike Limited
which formed part of the estate of the late Mr. Chen was being
administered by Mdm. Huang.

There shares represented 4.93% of the issued share capital of the
Company and were beneficially owned by Fat Tat Assets Limited,
which was in turn 100% beneficially owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen.
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Long positions in share options of the Company:

Report of the Directors
EFEHE

RRBBREZHFR:

Number of
options directly
beneficially owned

BEEEREEZ
Name of Director EE# & BRERE
Executive Directors: #17TE %= :
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan,Helen &35 22 - 150,000
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian f] R 4 %¢ &£ 1,600,000
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu =Z B 5t &£ 120,000
Non-executive Directors: F#{TESE :
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, ses, Jp. EKFE A4 » wsnes cFe+ 90,000
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel F & 358 & 120,000
Independent Non-executive Directors: Bk H1TES:
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny & %% 1E 5t & 1,170,000
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 7T L4 600,000
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel [ % %z + 1,350,000

5,200,000

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of complying with
the minimum company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures
in note 28 to the financial statements, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are disclosed
in note 28 to the financial statements. No share options were
granted under the share option scheme during the year ended 31
March 2017.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share award scheme are disclosed in
note 28 to the financial statements. No shares were awarded
under the share award scheme for the year ended 31 March
2017.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme and share award scheme of
the Company, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the following interests of 5% or more of
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Report of the Directors
EFEHE

FTERRREMATARD RARER
DR 2 s

R-B—tF=A=1+—H UTEARFEET
PR B BB R RS %3 A EHE R B RCER N AN R BRI
HEH R E GBI ATFE 2R B LA

Long positions: ¥R
Percentage of
Capacity Number of the Company’s
and nature ordinary issued share
of interest shares held capital
AR FE
2BITRA
Name &8 SORERME s ERHE ZHEDL
King Strike Limited (Note 1) (Bf5E1) Beneficially owned 263,960,041 37.73
EnER
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and Investment manager 55,600,000 7.95
its associates (Note 2) WEKE
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc K E B2 A
(Mt5E2)
Mr. David Michael Webb (Note 3) Beneficially owned/ 41,970,000 6.00
David Michael Webb4t 4 (i 5E3) Through control
corporation
EmlEs,/
FBRTEEE
HSBC Global Asset Management Investment manager 35,730,000 511
(Hong Kong) Limited (Note 4) WEKE
EERRKEERE (FB)BRAF (Ks)
Notes: Bt &
1. The issued share capital of King Strike Limited was owned by the 1.  King Strike Limited 2 & 217 B 7N 1 2 # ~ FR it

late Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey (who passed away on 14 April
2016) as to 77.45% and Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen as to
22.55%. The 77.45% of King Strike Limited which formed part of
the estate of the late Mr. Chen was being administered by Mdm.

Huang.

2. The 55,600,000 shares were held in the capacity as an investment 2.

manager by Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its associates.

EE(RZZE—A"FOATHBAHY) RAEFR
D BB T77.45% 5% 22.55% ° King Strike
Limited®)77.45% i m AR EEERN —F 5 -
HERZLTEE-

Aberdeen Asset Management Plc K E B A 1
R A KR IB 5 555,600,000 A 15 ©
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Report of the Directors
EFEHE

5. Mr. David Michael Webb is interested in a total of 41,970,000
shares, comprising 14,614,002 shares held by him as beneficial
owner and 27,355,998 shares held by Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, the entire share capital of which is owned by Mr. David
Michael Webb.

4. The 35,730,000 shares were held in the capacity as an investment
manager by HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total number of issued shares were held by the public
as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for the re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chan Ho-man, Daniel
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 June 2017
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To the shareholders of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to 231, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
1 IZSENER S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

Provision for inventories

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had net inventories
of HK$159 million, representing 14% and 9% of
the Group’s total current assets and total assets,
respectively. The estimation of the inventory provision
requires significant management judgement, which
includes the recoverability of the cost of inventories, the
nature and condition of inventories, the marketability of
finished goods and the future usage of raw materials.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 7 and 20 to
the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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FARETEE &)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We tested the ageing analysis of the Group’s inventories.
We recalculated the inventory provision based on
management’s estimate and assessed the assumptions
being used in the inventory provision calculation by
reviewing the basis, the rationale and the consistency
of the inventory provision estimate, considering the
historical and current inventory ageing information and
taking into account the historical sales pattern of aged
inventories.

EMHEFNMEERRERTEE

BAEs EREFEMNRESITETIHA RMAERE
BEEGHHEEREFLENGE FRTHEEREHE
ERNER AR FEREHANERE BRN—
B EEELREMFERKES AT AREFEDN
L HER -

FEEXREBERAR FH 2017 83



Independent Auditor’s Report
1 IZSENER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s investment properties
amounted to HK$136 million, representing 23% of the
Group’s total non-current assets and 8% of the Group’s
total assets. Management appointed an external valuer
to determine the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties twice a year. The valuation of the investment
properties at fair value was highly dependent on
estimates and assumptions, such as rental value,
rental growth rate, market yield, market knowledge and
historical transactions.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 16 to the
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in assessing the assumptions and estimates
made by management and the external valuer in the
valuation methodology about the property related data
supporting the fair value of the investment properties. We
considered the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the external valuer. We also assessed the disclosures
relating to the significant assumptions.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
Tax

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had tax payable of
HK$207 million and deferred tax liabilities of HK$20
million, representing 39% of the Group’s total liabilities in
aggregate. Management is required to make judgement
and estimates in relation to tax risks when determining
the tax provision. The Group operates in a number of
tax jurisdictions. Due to the complexity of local and
international tax legislation, judgements have to be made
by management on the tax treatment on transactions
in advance of the ultimate tax determination being
certain. Where the amount of tax payable or recoverable
is uncertain, the Group estimates provisions based on
management’s judgement of the probable amount of the
liability, or expected amounts recoverable, which may be
materially different from the estimated provision.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 10 and 26 to
the financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We involved our tax specialists to review the tax
provision of the Group. We assessed management’s
judgements in respect of estimates of tax exposures by
considering the associated fact pattern and the Group’s
correspondence with relevant tax authorities and recent
developments in the tax jurisdictions which may have
impact on existing tax exposures.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B IZSENERES

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
1 IZSENERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

88 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

BB ET RS
£

M WRAENE

BHNBER RHRGMBEBRBEBES I FE
BARBFFRERM BN EANBRBARG S
RiE LHABFERMERNZEE RS - RIEA

ZERADE (—NN\—F)FE0M RfER B
T(ERBR)BE Rt 2N REETAMEE
R - RPTERANREATAEREMBAL
BRI AEEFNEE

BERBRESNKFHRE BTERERR (B
BEER) BTNEF EX -BAHERBRM
TR 4B AL B IR « SE SR FR AL PJ A e BXFE S S5 AR B
B mRAEBHEMEBIERLERATETE
ARE IS RRE R B REMERRIEL R
RTE - BB BER AR BRUR AT R AR EE K

E*ETF (BEAREER) ETETRERES - 3
BRTERHE RETEREREE - B

o BBIFFHEANREFRERMEBRE WK
BREFEERERRANER &Rt LT
BATZFF AR S LR - A S ERTE R A
*%Eﬁ%?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%’E?%ﬁfﬂ%ﬁﬂ@%ﬁ%%ﬁ
RERFE AT 8 ﬁ&%%%\ﬁ%%_‘%%iﬁ\)fﬁ
ROt - SR BN ARSI Z £ - Eb R EE
fﬁulHXE’FHﬁ%@ZE’J%K%E&&BﬁLE’JHBﬁEEA
AREEBINA TR M BB ERHRR AR

@5 o
ZoN

o THEBETHBARIES  LRFEEH
EiRERF EBEMAIY E\KII*J*BT il

MARMERERER -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B IZSEP IR E

BB BTG EBRRAIENS
1T )

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

HEEEMRASTHRRNREERELE
AR AR R A -

HEZRAKEKLEGHERNBEEFEL
B REMERNEREE BEREH
EEZFELBENEEHERNTEEME 1M
AREEHY BERENBELERNELE
ARREE - MRBEMBA/FEERTEEME
QB B 2EZHBEN RS PIRFEAETELR
EUBHRPHERNE -BREABNKE
TR RRMAEERRIFERBEER -HM
B & e EIMMZ AT RS B LTS BV E AT
BEE AT RRERKBENALES &

SETRERFERE-

HESFEMBMROBERIIRI A EEM
NE BREEE UARGEEMBHRREE
BERRRZMER-

B BEREANERIEHEHNYKEEE
R7 R EENETERE WEHEE MG
BRBEXBR -RMBE BEEEFNS
[ EEMAT RSB BERAELR
Bif-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
H I IZSEPERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chung Yuk Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

28 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
iREREmZ
Year ended 31 March 2017 B ZE —F—+F=H=+—HIFFZ

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E-RF

Notes Fff & HK$'000 F#7t  HK$000 T 7T
(Re-presented)

(reE%)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS S E L& £
REVENUE Wz 5 1,830,267 2,308,161
Cost of sales #% B 7N (1,500,431) (1,941,260)
Gross profit EF 329,836 366,901
Other income and gains/(losses), net

Hip g AR zk, (B518) F58 5 16,359 (12,324)
Distribution and selling expenses 7 #4 & $4 & 5 52 (53,573) (54,384)
Administrative expenses 77§ X (128,339) (147,385)
Finance costs @l & ik 2 6 (4) (1)
Share of losses of associates [ & Bk 4 A 7] B3 18 (1,196) -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX

FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

REFBLE XN 2 R A& 7 163,083 152,797
Income tax expense FT15%i 5 10 (14,631) (12,743)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

REREREEB 2 FNEN 148,452 140,054
DISCONTINUED OPERATION T # L & & ¥ 75
Loss for the year from discontinued operation

REERIEEEEE 2 FAERE 11 (17,099) (20,682)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR % /i F) 131,353 119,372
Attributable to: T %1% 1L

Equity holders of the Company AN A Bl £ A A 132,556 120,205

Non-controlling interests 3F ¥ i% # 75 (1,203) (833)

131,353 119,372
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

& O\ 42 2
fRE 18 m 7
Year ended 81 March 2017 &2 —F—+#F=H=+—HIFFE

2017 2016
—E—+5F ZE-RF
Notes Mf 7 HK$'000 F#st  HK$000 FA&T
(Re-presented)
($&E5)
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
RAGIERFTBEARGERERN: 12

Basic & A&
— For profit for the year — 4 X % Fl|

HK19.05 centsi& 1l

HK17.38 centsj& il

— For profit from continuing operations
—REFELEEE 2 5T

HK21.51 centsi& 1l

HK20.37 centsi# Il

Diluted ##5%
— For profit for the year —4F A % Fl|

HK18.94 centsi& 1l

HK17.28 centsi# Il

— For profit from continuing operations

—REFBREEB 25N

HK21.38 centsi#& Al

HK20.25 centsi# Il
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Il'ﬂ-é\gﬁl&;‘(—%

Year ended 31 March 2017 &t —E—+F=H=+—HIFF/ZF

2017 2016
—EB—+tF —E—RF
Notes ¥ HK$’000 &7t HK$'000 F/& T

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4 Al s 131,353 119,372

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE)
Hizmikas (FX)

Other comprehensive income/(expense) to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

PrEFSRERERR At 2EKE, (FX) -

Available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve:
A EREEMFEE:
Changes in fair value A {8 % &) 19 41 (403)

Exchange differences: [ ¥ =58
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
BMEBIMEE X CBEHZERE (25,475) (25,752)
Reclassification adjustment for
a foreign operation disposed of during the year
FALENBINEERBE 2 EHMDRRHE 30 7,279 -

(18,196) (25,752)

Net other comprehensive expense to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods

eEmo B Bak s AN 2ERTFE (18,155) (26,155)

Other comprehensive income/(expense) not to be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
HergsmofZEaRc EMmeEkE (FAX) -

Asset revaluation reserve: & & & 14 &

Gain on revaluation of a building E 418 F 2 W 14 17,313 =
Income tax effect AT 1551 52 & 26 (4,328) =
12,985 -

Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods

HEreEM o REEaR A2 e ¥ 5 12,985 -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

inE EE K2

Year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —F—+#F=H=+—HIFF&E

2017 2016
—E—tF ZTERF
Notes Mf 7 HK$'000 F#&st  HK$'000 FA&T
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR
FEHEMPEAS (5,170) (26,155)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
FETEWERTE 126,183 93,217
Attributable to: 1) & T8 FE{h :
Equity holders of the Company R AT EREFEA A 127,386 94,050
Non-controlling interests 3F 1% A% 4 25 (1,203) (833)
126,183 93,217
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

£ 0\

iR BRI I 2

31 March 2017 R —ZE—+E=H=4+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Notes Fff 5% HK$000 F# Tt  HK$000 F& 7T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3£ 8 & &
Property, plant and equipment #1% « = N & & 14 338,037 523,592
Prepaid land lease payments T& < + i #8 & k38 15 51,587 86,579
Investment properties & & ¥ % 16 136,484 123,247
Deposits & & 17 3,916 22,440
Investments in associates Bt & A AR & 18 57,558 —
Investments in club memberships & FT& f#£1% & 870 887
Available-for-sale investments A] { H & & & 19 530 489
Total non-current assets 3F i &) & E 4858 588,982 757,234
CURRENT ASSETS B & &
Inventories F & 20 158,673 233,848
Accounts and bills receivable &4k 18 & 2 5% 21 141,459 165,549
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
FENRIE - Re RHEAMEYERIR 8,410 13,535
Due from an associate J& Y B 2 A 5 FUE 18 11,116 =
Tax recoverable ] Ug [ £ TH 207 110
Cash and cash equivalents & R ERE L HEE 22 775,816 665,705
1,095,681 1,078,747
Assets of disposal groups classified as held for sale
HEEEOERFELECEE 11 56,524 -
Total current assets i &) & & 4258 1,152,205 1,078,747
CURRENT LIABILITIES =B & &
Accounts and bills payable &1 BRTE & & 23 148,822 226,814
Accrued liabilities and other payables
st B E R E AR ERIA 192,067 245,851
Tax payable f& {718 197,684 191,500
Derivative financial instruments 74 &8 T & 24 - 519
538,573 664,684
Liabilities directly associated with the assets classified
as held for sale BB AAIHEEEEERFHACBE 11 17,542 -
Total current liabilities 7 &) & & 4 58 556,115 664,684
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RIS A2

31 March 2017 R—ZF—+F=H=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF ZTERF
Notes Hf7E HK$’000 F&7t  HK$'000 F/& T
NET CURRENT ASSETS i 8 & E % & 596,090 414,063
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
BELRBRATHAEG 1,185,072 1,171,297
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3Em & & f&
Deferred tax liabilities & IEFZ T 8 & 26 19,877 16,878
Net assets & & /F1E 1,165,195 1,154,419
EQUITY #Ez5
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARRIEREA ARG ERS
Issued share capital & 217 A 27 69,969 69,584
Reserves f# 29 1,075,588 1,062,511
1,145,557 1,132,095
Non-controlling interests JE12 % # &5 19,638 22,324
Total equity 18z 42 %8 1,165,195 1,154,419
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

= O\ f38 2 45k
REEDZEFK
Year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —F—+F=H=+—HIFF&E

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

NG Soe SN
Available-
for-sale
Issued Share Capital Share  Exchange Asset  investment Non-
share  premium redemption option  fluctuation revaluation revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
A E
=% 56 R 17 A BRE EX BE RESH FFEERR

R HEE BORE #R  KDEE ENER #E  REEMN = BE HEeH
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKE'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TRT TET TAT TAT TET TET TAT TET TET TET TAT

At1 April 2015 R=Z—REMA—H 68,849 102,291 4,668 9,075 80,390 30,237 820 800,853 1,097,183 19,335 1,116,518

Profit for the year & /i = = = = - - - 120,206 120,205 (833) 119,372
Changes in fair value of

available-for-sale investments

ARNERBZATEE - - - - - - (403) - (409) = (403)
Exchange differences on

translation of foreign operations

BEGNCEEB I ERESE - = S - (25752 = S - (25752 - (25752
Total comprehensive income/

(expense) for the year

FE2ENE/(BX) 88 - = = - (25752 = (403) 120,205 94,050 (833 93217
Issue of shares (note 27)

BT (Kisk27) 1,033 15,098 S (3,639) = = S = 12,492 = 12,492
Loans from non-controlling interests

FERERER - - - - - - - - - 3,822 3,822
Shares repurchased (note 27)

BERG (HE27) (298) (4,388) 298 = = = - (298) (4,686) = (4,686)

Final 2015 dividend declared and

paid (note 13)

BERKENZZZ-REERERE

(FiE13) - - - - - - - (29,088)  (29,088) - (29,088)
Special 2015 dividend declared and

paid (note 13)

BEREENzZZ-REERIRE

(K33E13) - - - - - = - (13,852)  (13,852) - (18,852
Interim 2016 dividend paid (note 13)

BRNZE—~FETHRE

(Fi3E13) - - - - - - - (26,337)  (26,337) - (26,337)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments (note 28)

BRUNEREENRO TN 2508

(P 5ro8) - - - 2,333 - - - - 2,333 = 2,333

At 31 March 2016
RZZ-~¥=ZA=+—-H 69,584  113,001* 4,966" 7,769* 54,638* 30,237* 417 851,483 1,132,095 22,324 1,154,419
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

& O\
RETE

B

Year ended 37 March 2017 # % —

—tFE=ZA=1—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARREREEARSL
Available-
for-sale
Issued Share Capital Share Exchange Asset investment Non-
share  premium redemption option fluctuation revaluation revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
THEE
BR{T () R BRE Ex BE REEHR FER
RA& HEE HERHE ®E KBRRE EHREE wE REER EH BE ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TR TER TER TER TR TER TER TER
At 1 April 2016
RZZ-REMA—H 69,584 113,001 4,966 7,769 54,638 30,237 417 851,483 1,132,095 22,324 1,154,419
Profit for the year & /i 7 - - - - - - - 132,556 132,556 (1,203) 131,353
Changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investments
HNEREZATEE - - - - - - M - 4 - M
Exchange differences related to
foreign operations
HENEEEB B ERZR - - - - (18,196) - - - (18,196) - (18,196)
Changes in fair value of
a building recognised directly in
equity, net of tax
ERERERERCETIATEED:
B HIA - - - - - 12,985 - - 12,985 - 12,985
Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year
FEREKE/ (FX)88 - - - - (18,196) 12,985 4 132,556 127,386 (1,203) 126,183
Issue of shares (note 27)
BTG (KteFo7) 726 11,993 - (1,717) - - - - 11,002 - 11,002
Shares repurchased (note 27)
BERG (KaE2r) (341) (5,935) 341 - - - - (341) (6,276) - (6,276)
Final 2016 dividend declared and
paid (note 13)
CERERENZ " E—AEEREBEL
(Ki3E13) - - - - - - - (36,072 (36,072 - (36,072
Special 2016 dividend declared and
paid (note 13)
BERRERZZE-—AFEHAIRE
(Bi3E13) - - - - - - - (27,747)  (27,747) - (27,747)
Interim 2017 dividend paid (note 13)
BRN-Z—tFETHRE
(K3E13) - - - - - - - (29,375)  (29,375) - (29,375)
Special 2017 dividend paid (note 13)
BRA 22—t FERHAIRS (M
13) - - - - - - - (26,578)  (26,578) - (26,578)
Dividend paid to non-controlling
shareholders
16) JE HE AR AR SRR A AR & - - - - - - - - - (1,483) (1,483)
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (note 28)
BRUNEREE RO N 2508
GEZ) - - - 1,122 - - - - 1,122 = 1,122
At 31 March 2017
R-B-tF=A=+-H 69,969  119,059* 5,307* 7,174* 36,442* 43,222* 458*  863,926* 1,145,557 19,638 1,165,195
A * ZERBRARGAVBRARZEEHB

statement of financial position.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$1,075,588,000 (2016: HK$1,062,511,000) in the consolidated

BT e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IREREREZ

Year ended 31 March 2017 &t —E—+F=H=+—HIFF/ZF

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes ¥ HK$’000 F&7t  HK$'000 F/& T

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
& %/Eﬁziﬁimbi
Profit/(loss) before tax: B &t AT #,/ (E518)

From continuing operations R B #3548 £ & ¥ 7% 163,083 152,797
From discontinued operation 28 B 2 #% | 68 & ¥ 75 (17,099) (20,682)
Adjustments for: 4% 3 %&

Finance costs &t & i 4 6 4 11
Depreciation #7& 14 55,255 61,986
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

BB L ERIA 15 2,325 2,546
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories

FERE,/ (BERRD) (11,724) 3,532

Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment, net

HEWE BERRBEAEBE, (W) FE (1,308) 2
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & [ & 2 7 2 ez 30 (4,167) =
Amortisation of a club membership & FT & £& # §4 7 17 19
Fair value losses on revaluation of investment properties

BERREMEZATEEBE 16 1,703 8,731
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

M- MERRERE 14 1,609 13,815
Write-off of items of property, plant and equipment

WEEY % BB RFREEE 14 600 =
Interest income & 8 U A (9,351) (8,191)
Dividend income & 8 4 A 7 (20) (38)
Equity-settled share option expense

NS EE 2 BIRERX 7 1,122 2,333
Share of losses of associates FE {5 Bt & A 7] E 18 1,196 =
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes & R & &) » 32 & (1,895) 7,449

181,350 224,310

Decrease in inventories £ & i 4 86,899 83,420
Decrease in accounts and bills receivable

FEWARTE R EBR 23,443 75,224

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

BARIE e REMEKRERERLD, (M) (5,182) 3,108
Decrease in accounts and bills payable &1 BRTE & Zig5 (77,528) (42,730)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities and other payables

fEFt B E R H R RRIEE N, Ol ) (32,422) 60,449
Decrease in derivative financial liabilities $7 4 81 7% & & 5 2> (519) (758)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=] \vayl—]
R RENER
Year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —F—+#F=H=+—HIFF&E

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
Notes Fff 5% HK$000 F# Tt  HK$000 F& 7T
Cash generated from operations & & TSI & 176,041 403,023
Interest received & 4 FI & 9,351 8,191
Interest paid B 1 F & (4) (11)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B 11 &% #15# (532) (219)
Overseas taxes refunded © W [B1& 5h i 18 689 387
Dividends paid &~ i &8 (119,772) (69,277)
Net cash flows from operating activities
REEHRUCBEREFR 65,773 342,098
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
REEBZHENRE
Dividend received E 4% & 20 38
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
BEYDE BELREIER 14, 36 (34,130) (104,257)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
HEME BWERKRHEEE PEHRIE 2,447 2,385
Disposal of subsidiaries i & Kf B 2 7] 30 89,578 =
Capital contribution to an associate [ABf & A BlJE & (30) =
Increase in an amount due from an associate
JE s B 5 X ) SRIE S AN (11,116) -
Deposits for prepaid land lease payments
BN TAERE RS - (14,919)
Decrease in restricted bank balance 5 B #i 8 17 4 &2 s - 1,695
Increase in time deposits with original maturity of
over three months when acquired
RUEE R R 2 EA B8 = 8 A 2 & BiF 538 (111,637) (431,496)
Net cash flows used in investing activities
REESFABASREFE (64,868) (546,554)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= [\ \‘ZT—E?
é&c;ﬂ?ﬁbmsg X
Year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —F—+F=H=+—HIFF&E

2017 2016
—E—tHF —T—RHF
Notes ¥ HK$’000 F&7t  HK$'000 F/& T

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
MEEBCHERE

Issue of shares #1717 {5

Repurchase of shares & [0] % 17

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests
A SE 42 AR 4 2 R T R B

27 11,002 12,492
27 (6,276) (4,680)

(1,483) =

Decrease in amounts due to non-controlling interests

FEAT FEERR A 2 & BB
Increase in loans from non-controlling interests
I 1 R A 25 B A

- (1,334)

= 3,822

Net cash flows from financing activities
MELTHRMESREFHE

3,243 10,294

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
RekERBeBEEEN CR)FHE

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
FzBEekERREIER

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net
EXEDIYETE

4,148 (194,162)
203,968 406,166

(1,246) (8,036)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

FRZE\EZNERBRELER

206,870 203,968

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
RekERBSBERAERZOMN

Cash and bank balances I8 & M iR 17 4 #4

Time deposits with original maturity of less than
three months when acquired
RBERRELR=ZE AN EREFR

Cash and bank balances attributable to
disposal groups classified as held for sale

HEKBRENDBERFELE R RIRITHE

22 101,923 133,232

22 101,689 70,736

(53 3,258 =

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows
FeRenEXRIRTzReRERNREIER

206,870 203,968
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Notes to Financial Statements

B F5 R 2e it 5t

31 March 2017 —ZE—+#=H=+—H

2.1

102

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the manufacture,
trading and retailing of footwear. Particulars of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries are detailed in note 39 to
the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties,
available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value.
Disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of
their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell as
further explained in note 2.4. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.
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2.1

~rEEHR
EEEXSEERAR AR BREGZM
MY Z2EBERETRA ARa ZafliiE
EZ {77 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °

TN AKEEERE BERTEEE-
AR A E R B R R F BRI B R M
39

mEEXE
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

104

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11
HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods

of Depreciation and Amortisation

Agriculture. Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

106

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011), amendments to HKFRS 11, HKFRS 14,
amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41, amendments
to HKAS 27 (2011), and certain amendments included in
the Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle, which are
not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the amendments
are described below:

(@ Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
clarify:

() the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i)  that specific line items in the statement of profit
or loss and the statement of financial position
may be disaggregated;

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order
in which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method must be presented in
aggregate as a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in
the statement of financial position and the statement
of profit or loss. The amendments have had no
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
issued in October 2014 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments are as
follows:

HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations: Clarifies that changes to
a plan of sale or a plan of distribution to owners
should not be considered to be a new plan of
disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan.
Accordingly, there is no change in the application
of the requirements in HKFRS 5. The amendments
also clarify that changing the disposal method does
not change the date of classification of the non-
current assets or disposal group held for sale.
The amendments are applied prospectively. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as the
Group did not have any change in the plan of sale or
disposal method in respect of the disposal group held
for sale during the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B F5 R 2e it 5t

31 March 2017 —ZE—+#=H=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?

HKFRS 16 Leases’®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses’

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22  Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property?

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2014-2016 Cycle HKFRSs"?
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2.3

2.4

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continuea)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

= No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have any significant
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, available-
for-sale investments and derivative financial instruments at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured

or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, investment properties and
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

24 EXAEHHERE (&)

ME BERRBRITE

W - BB Nl (ERETAZRRIN) YRR
B RETE MR ERBESIER - W%
BEERERRBEARIFLEXBNEE
SEFELE2HEAS A THEMRE
BEMBRESENESREALR FHEHL2H
[(FIFHEZERBEERLEHEI Z2E
AR - W% B KRR E ZKA - 81
HBEEEREZAEEEZEHEERE M
REARRERE B 2 EMEREEKA
WME BERRBEBNEFEMELEZX
H- BREERREBTVETNRELRA
ZHE B R A A HRIEN - BIE
BERERIXHINEEZREABETER
EREE-HYE BEERBZEEZRLS
BIBEER AAKEKERZEHD SHE
BEREEAFHZBYEE YHAFEE
EITHENE -



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continueqd)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write

off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment

to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The

principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Leasehold land under Over the lease term
finance leases

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
the lease terms
and 10% to 25%

Machinery, furniture, equipment 10% to 25%

and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continueqd)

Construction in progress represents the costs incurred
in connection with the construction of property, plant
and equipment less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Investments in club memberships

The useful lives of club memberships are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Club memberships with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the club memberships may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for club
memberships with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such club memberships are not
amortised. The useful life of a club membership with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

24 EXREBERBIE @)

ME BERRERITE (&)

ERTRERREYE BENREEEZH
BARAMBERBRESR B8 T UAF
E-REABEREENRCERERENR &
BTIERTTIURAERRENRINADE
R Kt 2 i E AR R o

EERRE

CEMERZAERFHFEAERRER -
FHMERZEMEREKRNAIERFEHAHE
WU EERENRBNEEER

BRE-AIERFRERCEMERE 2 HH
FRNEHTEELREMBFEER B —

IR e

ERUEAFHZEMERNEFRERX
RRSEEBMERERNS ZEEMER
AY#¥- - EERFNZEMERZAIER
FHRSFENE  WEEER A RS
ZHERERER oM S AR ER
FHZHEALRRERFHERSERF
HIR A A DI B -



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is dealt with as movements in the
asset revaluation reserve.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or
disposal group must be available for immediate sale in
its present condition subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for the sale of such assets or disposal
groups and its sale must be highly probable. All assets and
liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the Group
retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets classified as held for
sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continueq)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as other
income and gains and negative net changes in fair value
presented as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

B F5 R 22 it 5t

31 March 2017 —ZE—+4#=H=+—H

24 ERSHBEME &)

RERHEMMBEE (&)
WL R R 18 ()

B REBZMBEERNRZZA (AKX
SEARBERNLEREEZBY]) T oA
R —REBDRIZEMIE —RRERED
E-—EHRAXNEECMBEERSE

REE
MBEEZHERFABRRNENA TR

ZEiBRm AR FEIRZIEEE

FEBBmARNTHEIR W IEEEBERHE
BEECWHEEREBBREAFEAEL
RpHERREEE W BEE MBEE
AR ERE 2 B MR - RID SRR
BEZMBEE -REEEGTEAFINR
e BRERNRAXTETRERNZDT
ETATDBERFIEEE BRIFLDRIEE
RBERE AT A

AR FHEFABRRZ SREER A FERYT
BRRBRRAR A FEEFEHNIBER
2 REMBA RS MAFERFE
Q27| RREKAN - ZFEAFEZEHFREL
TERENRZFVHEERNZ LT
B ZERSREBE T X [arER ] ez
HHER ©

FEEXREBERAR FH 2017 119



Notes to Financial Statements

B F5 R 2e it 5t

31 March 2017 —ZE—+#=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

120

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
held for trading or designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in expenses.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed equity investments. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as
at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as dividend income and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and intention to hold
the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of
profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in
which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale
are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and bills
payable, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
interests and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, e.g.,
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency
risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.

B F5 R 2 it 5t

31 March 2017 —ZE—+#=H=+—H

24 EXAEHHERE &)

E#HEMTA
BRLERNEHCER SN BIOFER
BE XRARSEEAENFERE UKE
EEP T AER EREE A HIRRE
RLAFER SR -

TTESWMIA
W ERARAETE

AEEMATEERTA (PIEREES
#ERINERRR - ZFETESBM T AL
NFTZSTHE RN E AARFERR  WHEER
MR FEEFFE-HAFESLEE T4
TRANEEAR MEAFELSES AINK
BEAK-

TETRAZ A HEZSREE 2 TRAET)
BEEFFABER ERSREDZEERRLD
BRON - HRNE s 28 Y s WA S LR 0

EERYERRAREN I AEER-

FEEREEERAR FH 2017 129



Notes to Financial Statements

B F5 R 2e it 5t

31 March 2017 —ZE—+#=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments (continued)
Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current
or separated into current and non-current portions based
on an assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the
underlying contracted cash flows).

o Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as
an economic hedge (and does not apply hedge
accounting) for a period beyond 12 months after the
end of the reporting period, the derivative is classified
as non-current (or separated into current and non-
current portions) consistently with the classification of
the underlying item.

o Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to
the host contract are classified consistently with the
cash flows of the host contract.

o Derivative instruments that are designated as, and
are effective hedging instruments, are classified
consistently with the classification of the underlying
hedged item. The derivative instruments are separated
into current portions and non-current portions only if a
reliable allocation can be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continueq)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continueq)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest
element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid
land lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to
the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are

initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
itemms measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over

the goods sold;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest rate method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment has been established.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share
award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using an appropriate pricing model, further details of
which are given in note 28 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee are
not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Vietnam, Cambodia and Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately
under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

EXREHHE R @)

HI Wl (&)
REWEREENFMERMZ 7T

AEBMREEMEEETBREYE  LHIE
BRAHENMRE - REMERFIERIER K
ARERRE (K LME) 2P Bitt -
AEBUYEATELRSRE G K
BEBYRARBERBE EMBEE-ETY
BB KERDREASRARERTER
BMOFIELE IREERBBRS  HAIETT
BA% - Mz B8 0 A B E (B
BEBOFALE) AEEEHZEHS
DRAARRWMZERBOANABLEE ZY
X(EEMEZBLOBOFELE  SIRM
Bk RS SETTERAE 2B R T)AIF
EREVE -HYREETEEZMEYE
TR R EME TR BRI R EEE L H
B o



Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for inventories

The estimation of the inventory provision requires significant
management judgement, which includes the recoverability
of the cost of inventories, the nature and condition of
inventories, the marketability of finished goods and the
future usage of raw materials.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group makes impairment of accounts receivable
based on an assessment of the recoverability of accounts
receivable. Allowances are applied to accounts and bills
receivable where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of doubtful debts requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
the differences will have impact on the carrying value of the
receivables and doubtful debt expenses/write-back in the
period in which the estimate has been changed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for properties in the same location and
condition and subject to similar lease and other contracts.
In the absence of such information, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources. The valuation of the
investment properties at fair value was highly dependent
on estimates and assumptions, such as rental value, rental
growth rate, market yield, market knowledge and historical
transactions.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement, a sensitivity analysis and the carrying
amount of investment properties, are given in note 16 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
tax jurisdictions. Due to the complexity of local and
international tax legislation, judgements have to be made
by management on the tax treatment on transactions
in advance of the ultimate tax determination being
certain. Where the amount of tax payable or recoverable
is uncertain, the Group estimates provisions based on
management’s judgement of the probable amount of the
liability, or expected amounts recoverable, which may be
materially different from the estimated provision.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s primary operating segment is manufacturing
and sale of footwear products after the discontinuation
of the retailing and wholesaling business (the
“Discontinuation”) in the current year. Further details of
the Discontinuation are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements. Since the manufacturing and sale of footwear
products business is the only continuing operating segment
of the Group, no further analysis thereof is presented.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

EEI>HER (#)

HEER

(@) XEIREF LK

2017 2016
—ZE—tF ZE—REF

HK$'000 &7t  HK$'000 F&T

(Re-presented)

(FgE7))

The United States of America & & 382,199 479,405
Europe B 578,227 760,308
Asia 28 M 616,841 761,924
Others E A, 253,000 306,524
1,830,267 2,308,161

The revenue information of continuing operations
above is based on the locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

FRFEEEXTNREER AT

FITE b 3 IR 4R ©

(b) FrBEE
2017
—E-tF
HK$’000 & T

2016
—E—RF
HK$ 000 T 7T

Hong Kong &% 24,541 27,707
Mainland China # B A9 it 228,033 301,105
Cambodia 3 1 % 109,663 113,984
Vietnam 58 166,264 311,097
Others E 1,523 1,965

530,024 755,858

R EE RSO RDEEER
WAEFE B - AR REBT
A EHERRRABEATRE

The non-current asset information of continuing
operations above is based on the locations of the
assets and excludes financial instruments, club
memberships and investments in associates.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EESTWER (2
(continued)
Information about major customers FEEFER
Revenue from continuing operations derived from the HE-Z—tFR-_FT—X"F=A=+—H
manufacturing and sale of footwear products business with EFEA - HAREBREFELCEEBHE
over 10% of the total revenue from continuing operations of IR BiB10% .2 B S H B S M B TS P
the Group during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 EEREBFEBELEEBHRENT
is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE—RF
HK$000 F# Tt  HK$000 F& 7T
Customer A B2F A 584,265 334,804
Customer B %~ B 467,716 416,537
Customer C ®FC 315,475 366,748
Customer D &FD 244,842 346,743
Customer E B FE N/ATiE A+ 687,316
1,612,298 2,152,148
* Sales to the customer during the year ended 31 March * REBEEZZT—+tF=-A=+—HLEFE"
2017 amounted to less than 10% of the total revenue MEFHHEELAEEREFELEER
from continuing operations of the Group other than those KB ERIEPR10% Tt R ERFTIRESE -
disclosed in the above table.
The above amounts include sales to a group of entities tiieEaER— AT (%EEET il
which are known to be under common control with these ZEEHEEH)AEERE-
customers.
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/ 5. W% -HEMwARWzE ~ (&E)

(LOSSES), NET

Revenue represents the aggregate of the net invoiced
value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts, and after eliminations of intra-group
transactions.

R

Wasts R R E MBS NEMEEEm L
BEFEAN YOHEFHEEARRAEZR
% o]
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/ 5.

(LOSSES), NET (continuea)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains/(losses), net
from continuing operations is as follows:

Wi Httl A R Wz (85i8)
HEE(#)

A T 2 I3 E AR A R M
S (BE)FELNANT :

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—REF
HK$’000 /& T HK$'000 +& 7T
(Re-presented)

(f&=5)
Revenue WXz
Sale of goods H & & f 1,830,267 2,308,161
Other income and gains/(losses), net

Hthh ARz (&E)FE
Bank interest income #R17 # B A 7,944 7,081
Interest income from accounts receivable &% BRTE 2 Fl B U A 1,334 951
Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments

MEMIEZ AT EERE (530) (220)
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, net

HEWE BELREEE 2 W HHE 1,308 298
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 30)

HE B AR 2 Ys (MFEE30) 4,167 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ¥ % « B & =% & (& (1,609) (12,302)
Impairment of other receivables £ b f& U B T8 5 & (921) =
Write-off of items of property, plant and equipment

W% - BB &R TE B (27) -
Fair value losses on revaluation of investment properties

EMBREMEZ R FEERE (1,703) (8,731)
Gross rental income A& Ug A 4258 8,608 8,556
Foreign exchange differences, net [& ¥ = 58 % & (6,487) (10,284)
Dividend income A% 8 A 20 38
Others E i, 4,255 2,289

16,359 (12,324)
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FINANCE COSTS 6. RENA
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is REFECEEB 2RMENEDTAT
as follows:
2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —ZE-RF

HK$’000 & T

HK$'000 T8 7T

Interest on bank loans #£17 & 2 F .8 4 11
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBURTEF
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is REE R BB ELEER 2 BRBIADE | TY
arrived at after charging/(crediting): mk (GFA)ATIESR :
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-RF
HK$000 F# 7t  HK$000 F& 7T
(Re-presented)
(#&E7))
Cost of inventories sold $4 & 17 & ik 24 940,490 1,182,847
Depreciation #T & 55,148 60,934
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments % $5 78 1~ £ i#th 7 & 38 2,325 2,546
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories®

FEEE/(BEED) - (11,724) 4,334
Minimum lease payments under operating leases

KREENET ZREENES 2,353 2,096
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, net

LEWE- BEREHEE R FE (1,308) (298)
Write-off of items of property, plant and equipment

W% - BB &R TE B 27 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 30)

HE KB A Rz Weas (FifEE30) (4,167) -
Auditor’s remuneration 1% Zi kT Bl & 2,069 1,700
Employee benefit expense

(including directors’ remuneration (note 8)):

BERAMAX (BIEEEME (M58) ):

Wages and salaries T& Kk #H & 455,162 569,732

Equity-settled share option expense PAME =5 45 & 7 B AR #E B <2 1,122 2,333

Pension scheme contributions Bk & 5+ 2 £ & 51,195 73,592

507,479 645,657
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7.

152

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

N

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is
arrived at after charging/(crediting): (continued)

BRELBDRR ()

AEEREFELEEB ZBRHATE N I
ek, (FEA)ATIEE : (&)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 &7t  HK$'000 F/& T
(Re-presented)

(FeE7))

Amortisation of a club membership** & FT & £& # 4~ 17 19
Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments

TTHEERMIAZATEEBRE 530 220
Fair value losses on revaluation of investment properties

BERREMEZ AT EER 1,703 8,731
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ¥ % % & & & &8 (B 1,609 12,302
Impairment of other receivables £ & I BR 78 )5 (B 921 —
Bank interest income #R77 F S A (7,944) (7,081)
Interest income from accounts receivable &Y BRIE 2 7| 8 U8 A (1,334) (951)
Foreign exchange differences, net [ 3, = 58 %8 6,487 10,284
Dividend income % 8 A (20) (38)
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance)

arising from rental-earning investment properties

MBRESCREMEFEECEELLERX (BEEERRESR) 1,826 1,423

Cost of sales includes HK$417,637,000 (2016:
HK$530,193,000) relating to direct staff costs and
depreciation of manufacturing facilities, which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above for
each of these types of expenses.

Provision for inventories is included in “Cost of sales” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

> Amortisation of a club membership is included in
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EEME

FA-BEEMSRRETRA FBRQRME
BI5E383(1)(@) ~ (b) * (o) R (A1 I <~ A] (#5&
ERZNEER) RO FoRpRENT

2017
—B—+tF
HK$’000 T & T

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000 T8 7T

Fees #&

— Independent non-executive directors — B JETTE = 558 540
— Non-executive directors —JEHITE S 876 540
1,434 1,080

Other emoluments: H {h B 4
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & 28 R E W F| 25 6,479 6,778
Discretionary bonuses B 24 2,460 1,935
Pension scheme contributions iE k& 5t 2 1 &% 36 36
Equity-settled share option expense A # #5 & 2 AR #E I X 456 1,012
9,431 9,761
10,865 10,841

During the year and in prior years, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration
disclosures.

RAFEARNBEFERN FETEEEAR
NEBRETEZT  RIEEHANEE 2R
BRETRBEE & — SEBENYBERE
MisE28 - ERBHACNIERRBERZZE
BREZATERRLAREE MEER
RERMBHRRIBBENEINNLESHS

WEHH 7 -
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continuea) 8.
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a)

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

154 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

during the year were as follows:

T

Equity-settled
share option

Total

Fees expense remuneration

DEGEEZ
2017 we BB R R X MeBsE
—E—+tfF HK$000 T#7t HK$000 T#&t HK$000 &t
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny B %% 1E 7t & 186 45 231
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven # 7T %4 186 45 231
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel fRFEE &z + 186 45 231
558 135 693

Equity-settled
share option Total
Fees expense remuneration

NEREHE 2
2016 e REAR R X B 48 58
—E—REF HK$'000 F&r  HK$'000 T/  HK$'000 FE7T
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 58 %% 1F 5t 4 180 95 275
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven # 7T 5% 4 180 95 275
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel ff £ 2z + 180 95 275
540 285 825

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the year

(2016: Nil).

FRALBEMENBULIEATESTZ
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEME(»)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEERIHTES
Salaries,

allowances Pension Equity-settled
and benefits  Discretionary scheme  share option Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions expense remuneration

He ZHR Bfhe NERFEEZ
he BNz HEke FEER BRERX Wemm
2017 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-tf TR TR TR TR TEL THERL

Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey A

REUELEN - 886 - - - 886
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen *

EAmE L - 1,116 292 - 7 1,485
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 17 % 4 % & - 1,901 624 - 7 2,602
Mr. Mumma, Adin David **

SABRE - 1,280 780 - - 2,060
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu &8 £ - 1,296 464 18 61 1,839

- 6,479 2,160 18 215 8,872

Non-executive directors: £#/TES:

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel & X %4 690 - 300 18 61 1,069
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony &5k 2 % 186 - - - 45 231
876 - 300 18 106 1,300
876 6,479 2,460 36 321 10,172
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

8. EEM=E »)

(b) BTEERFUTES (F)

(continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension  Equity-settled
and benefits  Discretionary scheme  share option Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions expense  remuneration
He 2HER Bhe MEEEEZ
ik BN BEfke SRS BRERX Wens
2016 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-R% TR T TET TR TEL TR
Executive directors: HTEZ:
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey A
BB 5t 1 - 3,004 1,076 - 57 4,187
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
EAMAT - 1,061 304 - 158 1,523
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 7/ % % 7% & = 1,513 390 = 163 2,066
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu & & # 5% & - 1,200 135 18 127 1,480
- 6,778 1,905 18 505 9,206
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel %30 5% & 360 - 30 18 127 535
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony &7k 5 & 180 - - - 95 275
540 - 30 18 222 810
540 6,778 1,935 36 727 10,016

A Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey, who was also the
chief executive of the Group, passed away on 14 April
2016.

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen was appointed the
chief executive of the Group on 29 June 2016.

>k

Mr. Mumma, Adin David was appointed as an
executive director on 1 October 2016.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2016:
Nil).
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four directors of the Company (2016: four directors), details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one
highest paid employee who is not a director are as follows:

B F5 R 2 it 5t

31 March 2017 —ZE—+#=H=+—H

EERSHES
FARERSHFEECGEARANEES
(ZE-—R"F HZ2EF)  HMFBEER
EXHES -ANEFEREB—HRFEEZER
HEEZMEFEWT

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 &7t HK$'000 F/& T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 28 R B H| 25

Discretionary bonuses &) F &

Equity-settled share option expense VA#E %5 45 & 7 B IR AE B 2

491 414
595 559
61 127
1,147 1,100

The remuneration of the remaining one (2016: one) non-
director, highest paid employee fell within the band of
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 (2016: HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000).

In prior years, share options were granted to a non-
director highest paid employee in respect of his services
to the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 28 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director, highest paid employee’s
remuneration disclosures.

Efp— R (ZE—R"F:—R)FESF2H
=¥ EES <& 4 517 F1,000,0018 T E
1,500,000/ 7T ( = ZF — 754 : 1,000,001%
7L 21,500,000 7T ) °

REEFE —2FEFZERFEERE
MAREREZ REERBRE £—FF
BRI RAN T8 WE -2 FEREL
RNFHERRBREERSRER ARED
AHEE MEsRAFENBHRER 2B
AERA L FESZ RS FREE M EKE
DA -
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10. INCOME TAX

158

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

10. Fri8%

BEAFEBHIBERF AR B BRI (HETE
EBEFIZ16.5% (ZZT—RNF:16.5%) 2
TR B o Hfhih [R5 B SR TR A 2 B IE
TIRAEBEEXBIERR RAER Y

HEBIEE

2017 2016
—E-tF —E-REF
HK$’'000 F#T  HK$'000 T/&TT

Current — Hong Kong B1EAR: 18 — &8

Charge for the year K & & #i 18 & ! 847 1,688

Underprovision in prior years i@ x & & B & T 2 585 127
Current — Elsewhere B H3F{ 18 — H b ib [

Charge for the year K & & #i 18 &% ! 32,394 27,675

Overprovision in prior years &1 4 Z R 58 B (18,914) (14,431)
Deferred (note 26) iEIE (Ffi£26) (281) (2,316)
Total tax charge for the year AN 4F [E f1 18 3% 1 4858 14,631 12,743
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10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FRGH (#)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit BARARERISHBARMERR, A
before tax from continuing operations at the statutory rates FEREEMEFTEHEANREFELE
for the countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and the B2 BRBANR R 2 BIE T IR B R R
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense AERERBELEEB 2 BIET H 2 HER
from continuing operations at the effective tax rate is as m
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF

HK$’000 /& T HK$'000 +& 7T
(Re-presented)

(#=:5)

Profit before tax from continuing operations

KB FHE S E TS 2 BRA A A 163,083 152,797
Tax at the applicable tax rates 2@ A X E 2 18 28,832 21,380
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years

BAFEMERY 2 FAE (18,329) (14,304)
Income not subject to tax HZE R U A (268) (259)
Expenses not deductible for tax A #1754 2 fA 5% 3,954 3,680
Tax losses not recognised 7 #3728 &5 18 442 2,246
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate

BASEEBRNEGFAE 2 HIARX 14,631 12,743
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10.

160

INCOME TAX (continued)

The applicable tax rate is calculated based on the Hong
Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%), the Vietnam
Corporate Tax rates of 15% to 22% (2016: 15% to 22%),
the Cambodia Corporate Tax rate of 20% (2016: 20%),
the Taiwan Corporate Tax rate of 17% (2016: 17%), the
Corporate Income Tax rate in Mainland China of 25%
(2016: 25%) and the respective tax holidays granted to the
subsidiaries of the Group in Vietham and Cambodia.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC,
a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rates are 5% and 10%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

In addition, pursuant to Cambodian withholding tax
regulations, a 14% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to non-resident shareholders. Therefore, the Group
is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Cambodia in respect of
earnings generated.
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TS R25% (ZZ—NF 1 25%)
&$%@%t@&ﬁﬁ%2%%@ﬂm%ﬁ
BRI E -

BIEP BB EMERE  RABEAM Y 2
HNE R EEMINEIR EE TR 2 AR B BRI
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

At 31 March 2017, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China and
Cambodia. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed profit on Mainland
China and Cambodia subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$48,826,000 (2016: HK$49,386,000) at 31 March 2017.

The Group has estimated tax losses of approximately
HK$82,662,000 (2016: HK$69,203,000) arising in Hong
Kong that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is
considered not probable that the Group can utilise these
losses in the foreseeable future.

10.

B F5 R 2 it 5t

31 March 2017 —ZE—+#=H=+—H

B#H (&)

R-E—+HF=ZA=+—H0 VERLEER
FA AR B A i R SR 28 AR S 2 BT B A B FE 45 Ak
TEHH 2 REE B F| 2 AT MR IR T
ME-ZBERE ZEWBRRINARER
TRAGEDKBEBEF -R_E—+F=A
—t+—B - RAhEAEREEZHBAR
ZABREEFBEE 2 K5 KR T 6
2 EREEEEA £448,826,0008 T (= F
— N4 1 49,386,00058 7T ) ©

AEBBARBEEEECRBEBENA
82,662,000/ 7T ( = — /X 4 : 69,203,000
BIL) ZEEEERABEEERSESE
BZARIAEERBEN -BRZEWNE R
A—EHSBEE BAEEEN R ERER
ZEBBZAREMETA MU EREBAER
EREEIBEE -
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND
DISPOSAL GROUPS HELD FOR SALE

162

(a)

Discontinued operation

On 29 August 2016, the Company announced the
decision of its board of directors to wind down,
discontinue or sell its retailing and wholesaling
business (the “Retailing and Wholesaling Business”).
The Group has decided to cease the Retailing and
Wholesaling Business because it plans to focus
its resources on its manufacturing and sale of
footwear products business. As at 31 March 2017,
final negotiations for the sale of the Retailing and
Wholesaling Business were in progress and the
Retailing and Wholesaling Business was classified as
a disposal group held for sale and as a discontinued
operation. With the Retailing and Wholesaling
Business being classified as a discontinued
operation, the retailing and wholesaling business is
no longer included in the note for operating segment
information.
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND 1. CRIEREERRIBFIELEHE

DISPOSAL GROUPS HELD FOR SALE

(continued)

(a)

Discontinued operation (continued)

The results of the Retailing and Wholesaling Business

for the year are presented below:

£8#)

(@) ERILKEEK (&)
TERMBEEB2FREEREZ7/MT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 & T HK$'000 T 7T
Revenue Yz 23,099 35,040
Cost of sales 8% A< (9,056) (17,726)
Gross profit & ¥l 14,043 17,314
Other income and gains/(losses), net
Hpg A Rias~ (&18) F58 (78) 877)
Distribution and selling expenses 7§ & £ 5 5% (22,733) (28,229)
Administrative expenses 7T Fi X (8,331) (8,890)
Loss before tax from discontinued operation
REBERIERERE ZRTATEE (17,099) (20,682)
Income tax expense FfT 155 5 2 = -
Loss for the year from discontinued operation
REERIEEEEE 2 FEEE (17,099) (20,682)
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND 1. ERLREXBRFELHEHE
DISPOSAL GROUPS HELD FOR SALE 58 (2
(continued)
(a) Discontinued operation (continued) () CBRIEEEEXK(£)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the TERMBEBER _T—tF=A
Retailing and Wholesaling Business as at 31 March :+*EZ:§§&ET&ZEE§E%WD
2017 are as follows: ™
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF

HK$’000 T8t  HK$'000 F/& T

Assets BE

Accounts and bills receivable & Ik BR 18 & =% 647 =
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

FENRE e REMEKIRIE 568 —
Cash and cash equivalents 384 M &£ R4 IEH 4,073 =
Assets classified as held for sale D AFIELE 2B E 5,288 =

Liabilities B (&

Accounts and bills payable & BRTE & & (464) =
Accrued liabilities and other payables &=t & & K £ b & 1+ BR 18 (1,098) —

Liabilities directly associated with the assets classified
as held for sale D AAHEEEEERFH BE (1,562) -

Net assets directly associated with the disposal group

HHEEEEEEE EEFE 3,726 =
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND
DISPOSAL GROUPS HELD FOR SALE

(continued)
(a) Discontinued operation (continued)

The net cash flows incurred by the Retailing and
Wholesaling Business are as follows:

B F5 R 2 it 5t

31 March 2017 —ZE—+#=H=+—H

 ERIEREXBREFHERE
&8 (%)

(@) ERILKEEK (&)
zE ?tt?é%ﬁ%iziﬁ/i\ mE R

pisy
p)
7|

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—REF
HK$’000 T3 T HK$'000 F+7& T

Operating activities 4% & /& 8) (4,525) (2,431)
Investing activities & & /& &) 2,243 (1,177)
Net cash outflow I8 & i H 7 # &8 (2,282) (3,608)

Loss per share: &% 518 :
Basic, from discontinued operation
EXR-REDRIREED
Diluted, from discontinued operation

BHE-RACRUEEEXD

HK(2.46) centsi&fll  HK(2.99) centsiE

HK(2.46) cents®B{ll  HK(2.99) centsi L

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per
share amounts from discontinued operation presented
for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 in
respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
loss per share amounts presented.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share
from discontinued operation are based on:

WERHE—T—+tFRZFT—RF
ZA=+—RIEFESR ﬁmxaaﬂ
IEEEEB s SRERNEBSBELD
BERE  RERMARITEERELFT
ERNERERBECHEAAREE

Y
TEC

KEERIEREXB 2 BRENRE
SBEBETRATRE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—REF
HK$’000 T3 T HK$'000 F+7& T

Loss E5 8
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent from discontinued operation

KEERUEREEB AR EAERSAARIEEE

(17,099) (20,682)
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11.

166

DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND 1. ERLREXBRFELHEHE
DISPOSAL GROUPS HELD FOR SALE 58 (2
(continued)
(a) Discontinued operation (continued) (a) CBRIEEEER (&)
The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share REDRIEEEES 2 GRERERE
from discontinued operation are based on: (continued) SEEBIEUTRE: (&)

Number of shares

2017 2016
—B—tf —TAE

Shares I 17
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year used in the basic earnings per share calculation
(note 12)
A BEERERBMNEBENZRNEANBITLZ
BN T 8 (KiRE12) 695,673,705 691,674,196

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the diluted earnings per share calculation (note 12)
RAEEREERAN RN 2 TR MNEFHE (KH12) 699,920,106 695,800,219
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1. CRIEREEBRRIBZEHELE
58 (&)

(continued)

(b)

Disposal group held for sale

On 28 December 2016, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party, Talent Union (Hong Kong) Investments Limited
(the “Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to acquire and the Group
has conditionally agreed to dispose of 100% equity
interest of Kingmaker Footwear (Zhong Shan) Co.,
Ltd. (“Kingmaker Zhong Shan”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, at a cash consideration
of RMB168,000,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$188,000,000. As at 31 March 2017, the disposal
of Kingmaker Zhong Shan was not completed and
subject to the fulfiiment of condition precedent.
Kingmaker Zhong Shan was classified as a disposal
group held for sale. Subsequent to year end, the
registration process with the relevant industrial and
commercial administration in the PRC in respect of
the transfer of the entire equity interest in Kingmaker
Zhong Shan had been completed in April 2017.
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, 50%
of the consideration had already been released by
the escrow agent to the Group, while the remaining
50% of the consideration is expected to be released
by the escrow agent to the Group before late July
2017 on the condition that the Group has settled all
the encumbrances (including but not limited to taxes,
penalties, utility charges, etc.) incurred by Kingmaker
Zhong Shan prior to the date of completion, failing
which the purchaser is entitled to deduct the amount
equals to such encumbrances from the payment of
the remaining consideration.

(b)

FEHEHESRE

RZE—-RE+A=-+/\B K&
EHE—ZBUE=FERE (FB)EK
BEERAR (BRI BEE W
Bl BEFEBRERZEWBEmMASE
EEEKHERELREIE28E (P L)
BERAR([NEEF L] AEEZZE
EHRBAR)MEBRE BeRE
A AR #168,000,0007T (HE R
188,000,000/ 7T) c R =T —tF =
A=+—8 HEIEEF L RTK"
MR SR - B2 R 1L D HE
ARELELERE -RNELERE B
FAEEIEES L =R +R HE
BIFTREERNHEELEFER
T tFNAEK BREEERE
REZ50%EHFAERBRANEEH
W MAREZ 8 0% BB HEER
BR-ZZ—tFLARANMAEEE
B AEAEBEBEEIBES LR
TR BHAIEECBEERAE (B
FRETRRBIE SR LR HEER
L) MAREEERILEBRE EHEH
EEHTREZMNRFTNRESERE
HEEBE2S8E-
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND 1. ERLREXBRFELHEHE
DISPOSAL GROUPS HELD FOR SALE 58 (2
(continued)
(b) Disposal group held for sale (continued) b) FELEHESRE(E)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of BE-_T—+tH=A=1t—R IREF
Kingmaker Zhong Shan classified as held for sale as WD BERIFIELEZTREENREE
at 31 March 2017 are as follows: R
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF

HK$’000 T8t  HK$'000 F/& T

Assets BE

Property, plant and equipment #12 « B = & & & 43,441 -
Prepaid land lease payments T + i 0 & k18 7,440 =
Cash and cash equivalents I8 & M ZERIIRETEE 355 —

Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale
HEEEORRFELECEE 51,236 -

Liabilities B (&
Accrued liabilities and other payables fE&H & (& & E th &~ BRI (6,998) -
Tax payable &1 %18 (8,982) =

Liabilities directly associated with the assets classified
as held for sale DEAHIEEEEREEEBA ARG (15,980) —

Net assets directly associated with the disposal group

EHESEERBEECEEFE 35,256 -
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$132,556,000 (2016:
HK$120,205,000), and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 695,673,705 (2016: 691,674,196) in
issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$132,556,000 (2016:
HK$120,205,000) and 699,920,106 (2016: 695,800,219)
ordinary shares, being the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, adjusted for the
effects of the potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.

12.

B F5 R 22 it 5t

31 March 2017 —ZE—+4#=H=+—H

AR ERBFAARLERER

BREARFSEDBRBERNARAEEIFTEA
JI& 1 4F JZ 3% 132,556,000/ 70 (=& — <
% :120,205,000/ 7T ) R F A E 817 @Ak
hnAE 15 #695,673,7050% ( —F — N
691,674,196/% ) 5t & -

BREERTESBEIRBERARAERIEEA
JE 5 4F 12 %5 #1132,556,000% 7T ( =& — 7%
£ 120,205,000 7T ) M 4& FAE BE1TBT
BELRR o YEFELARBRIFABE
77 % AR b0 #E 15 #699,920,106/% (=&
— N4 1 695,800,2190% ) 5+ & »

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$'000 T# 7t  HK$000 TH7T
Earnings 2 F|
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company:
AAEIEREEARERRN, (BE):
From continuing operations K [ £ 45 £F & % 7& 149,655 140,887
From discontinued operation 2 [ 2 4% || 48 & ¥ 75 (17,099) (20,682)
132,556 120,205
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12.

170

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. AR EERFEARBLERER

TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (%)
(continued)
Number of shares
iivig: = 4=|
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
Shares & 17

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in

calculating the basic earnings per share

A EERERANRB O E BB INE TR 695,673,705 691,674,196
Weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to

have been issued at no consideration on

deemed exercise of all dilutive options in issue during the year

FARERITEZ M BT EBREMRREEETLZ

3B AR N 735 8L 4,246,401 4,126,023

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculating the diluted earnings per share
RAEEREERNAB 2 L BB INETFHH 699,920,106 695,800,219
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13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE

2017 2016
—E—+HF —F—RF
HK$’000 T8t  HK$'000 F/& T

Dividends paid during the year % A & J& 1+ A% &
Final in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2016 — HK5.2 cents per ordinary share
(2016: final dividend of HK4.2 cents per ordinary share,
in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2015)
HREE_T-—REZA=T—HLEMBRFEHRARE
—BREEKRS 2B (ZE—RF - RBE_T—0LF
ZA=ZT—BHIEMBFE  REREERE RAR4.281) 36,072 29,088
Special in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2016 — HK4.0 cents per ordinary share
(2016: special dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share,
in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2015)
RBE_ZE-—RF=ZA=T—HLHERFENFHRE
—BREARIOBIN(ZE-—RE - BE-_ZT—0F

ZA=+—BHIEMEFE FHREEGREBR2.0%E) 27,747 13,852
Interim — HK4.2 cents (2016: HK3.8 cents) per ordinary share
FHIR B R @AR4 2B (=T — X F : 3.875(L) 29,375 26,337
Special — HK3.8 cents (2016: Nil) per ordinary share
BRRE —BREERKRISHEBM (ZE—RF &) 26,578 -
119,772 69,277

Proposed final dividend ## & 7 27 % &

HK5.5 cents (2016: HK5.2 cents) per ordinary share

T RARS.58 (=T —XF :5.281) 38,483 36,184
Proposed special dividend ##& 45 Bl i% 2.

HK4.5 cents (2016: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share

B E RARA.6 I (ZF —XF - 4.0%1l) 31,486 27,834

69,969 64,018

The proposed final dividend and the proposed special R [ R R B AR B S IR 4 B AR B B A R

dividend for the year are subject to the approval of the NERERRBEIERITCRERAF RS EHE

Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general % AR o R E B S R 0 A R A
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the RS e

dividends payable.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. % BERRE

Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
Land and Construction and motor
buildings in progress vehicles Total
W KA
BiE HEYE
THREF EEIR RERR/E &t
31 March 2017 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E2—+tF=HA=+—-H TERT TER TERT TERT
Cost: A
At beginning of year 7 & 7] 583,846 58,187 502,800 1,144,833
Additions R E 2,163 10,742 7,959 20,864
Disposals 1% - - (74,659) (74,659)
Write-off # - - (7,520) (7,520)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30)

HEKB AR (KME30) (66,934) - (30,015) (96,949)
Transfers 4 13,811 (13,811) - -
Transfer to investment properties

(note 16) BAKZEME (HiFE16) (17,387) - - (17,387)
Assets included in a disposal group

classified as held for sale (note 11)

AATERRIELEL

HESBEE (MiF11) (114,286) - (3,927) (118,213)
Exchange realignment 9 5% (23,375) (199) (16,864) (40,438)
At 31 March 2017

RZE—+tF=A=+—H 377,838 54,919 377,774 810,531
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31 March 2017 —E—+4#=H=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. P BERRE 2

(continued)
Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
Land and Construction and motor
buildings in progress vehicles Total
e KA
RiE HEWE
THREF EEIR RER[E CE
31 March 2017 (continued) HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
“E-t+tH=A=1+—-H (&) TET THET TET TER
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
25 E RRE :
At beginning of year I %] 252,704 - 368,537 621,241
Depreciation provided during the year
FRFHRITE 25,048 - 30,207 55,255
Impairment provided during the year
FARABE - - 1,609 1,609
Disposals & - - (73,520) (73,520)
Write-off #f &l - - (6,920) (6,920)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30)
& H B A | (HEE30) (4,283) - (6,434) (10,717)
Transfer to investment properties (note 16)
BAKREWE (KE16) (12,295) - - (12,295)
Assets included in a disposal group
classified as held for sale (note 11)
AR ARRELEZ
HESBEEE (HE11) (70,845) - (3,927) (74,772)
Exchange realignment 9\ 58 2 (12,968) - (14,419) (27,387)
At 31 March 2017
RZE—+F=H=1+—H 177,361 - 295,133 472,494
Net book value: B& H % 1E :
At 31 March 2017
RZE—tF=A=1T—H 200,477 54,919 82,641 338,037
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERR® 2
(continued)
Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
Land and Construction and motor
buildings in progress vehicles Total
e KA
HEHEME
T REF EEIR RERAE &t
31 March 2016 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE—RE=ZA=+—H THET THET TET FET
Cost: 7K :
At beginning of year 7 4 %] 581,699 54,207 477,188 1,113,094
Additions RN E 385 76,348 39,121 115,854
Disposals (& - - (9,372) (9,372)
Transfers & 60,451 (72,019) 11,568 =
Transfer to investment properties (note 16)
BAKREWE (KiE16) (38,036) - - (38,036)
Exchange realignment 9N 38 £ (20,653) (349) (15,705) (36,707)

At 31 March 2016
RZE—XRF=ZA=+—H 583,846 58,187 502,800 1,144,833
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 1% -BERRE @)
(continued)
Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
Land and Construction and motor
buildings in progress vehicles Total

wa KA
R HEME

T REF ERETRE FERAE A&t
31 March 2016 (continued) HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-XE=ZA=1+—R (&) FHBT TET TET FET
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
R MERRE:
At beginning of year 7 4 %] 254,166 - 335,979 590,145
Depreciation provided during the year

FARITE 24,296 - 37,690 61,986
Impairment provided during the year

FARBIE - - 13,815 13,815
Disposals (& - - (6,985) (6,985)
Transfer to investment properties (note 16)

BAKREWE (KiE16) (16,273) - - (16,273)
Exchange realignment 9N 78 B (9,485) - (11,962) (21,447)
At 31 March 2016

RZE-RF=ZA=+—H 252,704 - 368,537 621,241

Net book value: BRI /$ & :
At 31 March 2016
RZE-R"FE=ZA=1+—H 331,142 58,187 134,263 523,592
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

176

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, certain buildings
and the corresponding prepaid land lease payment with
carrying amounts of HK$5,092,000 (2016: HK$21,763,000)
and Nil (2016: HK$1,837,000), respectively, were
transferred to investment properties at fair value of
HK$22,405,000 (2016: HK$23,600,000) based on valuation
by Castores Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers. Accordingly, a gain on
revaluation of HK$17,313,000 (2016: Nil) was recorded in
the asset revaluation reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, furniture, equipment
and leasehold improvements for manufacturing and
sale of footwear products business of HK$1,609,000
(2016: HK$12,302,000) were fully impaired as the Group
restructured the operation to which the property, plant and
equipment belong.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the furniture and
leasehold improvements for the Retailing and Wholesaling
Business of HK$1,513,000 were impaired because the
business had been loss-making for some time.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

14. V¥ BEREE &)

HE_ZT—+tHE=-A=+—HILEE 1
BEUEESARMENRE (E5) AR
AARHER  BREED 5 45,092,000
7T (ZZT—7<%F 1 21,763,000/87T) R EH T
(ZZ—74F:1,837,0008 L) E TIEFT
T HE B B TE 1+ £+ R & 5k T53%222,405,0005
7T ( ZZ—7<4F 1 23,600,000/ 7T ) KA FAE
BARBYE A REGREEEGR
R W 517,313,000 T (=T — < F:
/).

RBE-_ZT—+F=ZA=+—RHLt&EE"
RERHEEFEMEBNERE RERH
E ) % 181,609,000/ 7T ( Z B — K 4F:
12,302,000 7T) - AAE EFHEY % - BE
KBTI R & B M B BURE

REBE-_ZT— F=ZA=1+—RHILEE"
TERMBERNRARBAEDEEE
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31 March 2017 —E—+4#=H=+—H

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. FE{T T A EFH1T
2017 2016
—E—+HF —EF—RF

HK$’000 T8t  HK$'000 F/& T

Carrying amount at beginning of year & 4] 2 R E (& 89,038 80,277
Transfer from deposits ## B % & - 16,769
Transfer to investment properties (note 16) A E W3 (HizF16) - (1,837)
Amortised during the year 7 4 (A # §5 (2,325) (2,546)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30) H & [ & A &) (H5£30) (23,078) =
Assets included in disposal group held for sale (note 11)

AARELE L EEREE (MiE11) (7,440) =
Exchange realignment [ 58 £ (2,866) (3,625)
Carrying amount at 31 March ®= A =+—HB ZEHEE 53,329 89,038

Current portion included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

PIATERFIE e REMEWHIE 2 NS (1,742) (2,459)
Non-current portion 3FB1HA 585> 51,587 86,579
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16.

178

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REW=

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

HK$'000 F#7t  HK$000 T8 7T

Fair value at beginning of year R F#] 2 AF (& 123,247 115,692

Fair value losses on revaluation 2 & A F & &8 (1,703) (8,731)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 14)

BEAWE BEKRKE (FE14) 22,405 21,763

Transfer from prepaid land lease payments (note 15)

B A BN LA ERIE (ME15) - 1,837

Exchange realignment 4 78 £ (7,465) (7,314)

Fair value at 31 March R=A=+—HZ ¥ @& 136,484 123,247

The Group has determined that the investment properties
consist of two classes of assets, i.e., commercial and
industrial, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of
each property.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 March 2017 based on valuations performed by
Castores Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$136,484,000 (2016:
HK$123,247,000). There has been no change from the
valuation technique used in prior years.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria of an external valuer include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group
discusses with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is
performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under

operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 31 to the financial statements.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REW= (&)
Fair value hierarchy DNFEEER
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as RZB—+tF=A=1+—HEZZE—RF=
at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 are estimated by A=+—H REBEZREWMEZAFETD
using significant unobservable inputs and the fair value FREATERE ABIBRG AT ER
measurements are categorised under Level 3. ENREE=H-
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FRN F-REF_AERESERATE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no ArE MEBEEAF=AXEF=—REL (=
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil). T—RNFE) o
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised RAFEEBRE=HFRNS B2 AV EFES
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: B :
Commercial Industrial
properties properties Total
BENE IT¥EME &5t

HK$'000 T# 7T  HK$000 /&  HK$'000 T 7T

Carrying amount at 1 April 2015

RZE-—HAFNA—HBZEREE 10,185 105,507 115,692
Fair value losses on revaluation recognised in profit or loss

REGTRAZEHLTEER (359) (8,372) (8,731)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 14)

BEAWE BEKRKE (FE14) - 21,763 21,763
Transfer from prepaid land lease payments (note 15)

BEaTEN LA EFRE (EE15) - 1,837 1,837
Exchange realignment 9 38 2 (534) (6,780) (7,314)

Carrying amount at 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016
RZE—RFZA=+—8K

—E-REMA—-BZKRHEE 9,292 113,955 123,247
Fair value losses on revaluation recognised in profit or loss

RERTEIAZEGRTFEER (167) (1,536) (1,703)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 14)

BREME WBEN&RE (MiE14) - 22,405 22,405
Exchange realignment 7 38 £ (579) (6,886) (7,465)

Carrying amount at 31 March 2017
R-ZE—+F=ZRA=+—HZEAE 8,546 127,938 136,484
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. WEWE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEEBHK (&)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and T RIEEMEGEMFER 2 MERERE
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: ZANBEIHE:
Significant
Class of property Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
L EEY| MBS % ERTAERR AHE &7 [F =% A F 15
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Commercial Market comparable Gross unit rate per HK$26,000 HK$28,000
properties method square metre
[HE37ES ™35 L BUX BYHKBRBEMER 26,0005% 7T 28,0007 7T
Industrial properties Income capitalisation Estimated rental value HK$6 to HK$7 to
approach (per square metre and HK$18 HK$18
per month)
T¥EME WA B AR E HEHeEE 6B TE TBEILE
(B¥HREEH) 1878 T 187 7T
Rental growth rate 1% 1%
AR X
Market yield 8% 8%
5 W &
A significant increase/(decrease) in the gross unit rate per BT KRBNEE FHiHeEARE(H
square metre, estimated rental value (per square metre and EHAERBA)RESEREARBES LA
per month) and rental growth rate in isolation would result S (T BEBIREME L AFEKNIE -
in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the F/O(TH) - EMBNEREBAIRESE
investment properties. A significant increase/(decrease) in HOCTHS) B @838 EME s A TEKR
the market yield in isolation would result in a significant BT (EF) -

decrease/(increase) in the fair value of the investment
properties.
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17. DEPOSITS

Included in the deposits were:

(a)

deposits of HK$3,900,000 (2016: HK$3,900,000)
for the lease of a parcel of land in Vietnam. Pursuant
to the letter of offer entered into between the Group
and an independent third party on 30 April 2015,
the Group would lease the parcel of land in Vietham
until 2058 at a consideration of approximately
US$5,000,000 (approximately HK$39,000,000),
subject to adjustment based on the actual area of
the land pursuant to the final survey. Further details
of the transaction were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 April 2015; and

as at 31 March 2016, deposits of HK$16,528,000
for the lease of a parcel of land in Vietnam. Pursuant
to the letter of offer and supplemental agreement
entered into between a then subsidiary of the
Company and an independent third party on 15
July 2013 and 27 December 2013, respectively, the
Group would lease two parcels of land in Vietham
until 2082 at a consideration of approximately
US$6,855,000 (approximately HK$53,334,000),
subject to adjustment based on the actual area of
the land pursuant to the final survey. Further details
of the transaction were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 15 July 2013 and 30
December 2013. During the year ended 31 March
2017, the then subsidiary was disposed of (note 30)
and the deposits were derecognised.

B F5 R 22 it 5t

31 March 2017 —ZE—+4#=H=+—H

17. & &
A A

(@)

A&/ — i@ £ i 23,900,000 7T
ZZ— X4 13,900,000 TT)EE °
BEAEESRBYE= AR _F—1
FHA=THILZEL K AEBH
HEBE Rt BEE-_THN\F -
R {E %95,000,000% 7T ( £739,000,000
PBIT)  HERTIRIE SR AR ED R 2 T B R
HEREHAR - ZRXH2E—FFRE
REAAGAHAE-ZT—RFNA=1
Bz AHRIERE: &

RZE—XRF=ZA=+—H HEHW
m — g + 31 2 16,528,000/ LIk & °
BERANF—HERMNBRREE L
BN —_E—=FtA+HEA
RZE2—=F+ZRA=++tR5Ixx
EHNRRERGE AEEBHEE R
AREL BEE BN _F REY
6,855,000 7T ( £953,334,000/% 7T )
AT AR R A AR Bh0R 2 L b BB A AE {E
LHAZ - R IE—THBERA
AEIAMAZS—=FftATHAEK
T+ - A=+RHZAHBAK
BE-REE-_Z—+tHF=A=1+—AL
FEHE ENHNBAREWHE (K
F130) F ZIRS B R IERER -
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. Bi&E N TFIIRE

2017 2016
—E—+HF —EF—RF
HK$’000 T8t  HK$'000 F/& T

Share of net assets [E1§ B E FE

57,558

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-

free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

FEU — KB 2 A RIRROR

45 5 1 3KOB B K o

BRAER 28 R

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates are as AEBFEBE AR ZFBUOT:
follows:
Percentage of
ownership
Particulars of Place of interest
issued incorporation attributable  Principal
Name share held and business to the Group  activities
VNUNGIE Yok
=L ERTROBEFE EREE 3 BEEAL FEER
Alliance Investment Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Investment holding
Development Limited LR RBERRHE "B R
(“Alliance Investment”)
Star Praised Limited Ordinary Shares British Virgin Islands 40  Investment holding
Ak REARRES REER
Kingmaker Il (Vietnam) Registered capital of Vietnam 40  Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. US$11,779,549 =] manufacturing
A 411,779,549 REEREM
T
Empress Choice Limited Ordinary Shares British Virgin Islands 40 Investment holding
B KEERARES REEK
Maystar (Vietnam) Footwear ~ Registered capital of Vietnam 40  Footwear
Co., Ltd. US$3,600,000 W manufacturing
#F i & 73,600,000 REEBEM
eV
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. Bi&E N FIIRE (&)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

information of the Group’s associates that are not RAZEHITEER:
individually material:

2017

—E—+t5F

HK$’000 ¥ & T

TRINRAEBRER T

U AERZEE

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000 F/& 7T

Share of the associates’ loss for the year JE 15 5 & A Bl F A E1E (1,196)
Share of the associates’ other comprehensive income/(expenses)

EIEE SRR EM2EBA (FAxX) -
Share of the associates’ total comprehensive income/(expenses)

LSRR 2EBRA (FAX) 8% (1,196)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s investments

in the associates AEERBE AR 28 E 2 RAEAE 57,558

19. AAHHERE
2017
—E—tF
HK$’000 ¥ & T

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

2016
—E—RF
HK$ 000 T 7T

Listed equity investments, at fair value FH AR E - 2 A F{E 530

489

During the year, the fair value gain in respect of the Group’s
available-for-sale equity investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$41,000 (2016:
loss of HK$403,000).

The fair values of the listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices.
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21.

20. INVENTORIES 20. 8

2017 2016
—E—+HF —EF—RF
HK$’000 T8t  HK$'000 F/& T
Raw materials & #1 ¥t 77,350 116,973
Work in progress 7£ & 15,072 23,274
Finished goods &K &4 66,251 93,601
158,673 233,848

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE . EREREREE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF

184

HK$’000 T # T HK$'000 T & T

Accounts and bills receivable J& U BE 18 & 2= 1%

141,459 165,549

The Group’s accounts and bills receivable mainly related
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers. Payment
terms with customers are largely on credit. Invoices are
normally payable within 90 days of issuance, except for
certain well-established customers, where the terms are
extended to 180 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by the
Group’s senior management. Accounts receivable are non-
interest-bearing, except for a balance due from a customer
of approximately HK$65,480,000 (2016: HK$26,760,000)
which bears interest at 0.25% (2016: 0.25%) for a fixed
period of 60 days.
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21. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

(continued)

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivable as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the date of goods
delivered, is as follows:

21.

B F5 R 22 it 5t

31 March 2017 —ZE—+4#=H=+—H

EWRERERE &)

REMRNARAEE  BUREREER
BEHRREDHOT

2017 2016
—E—tH —ET—RF
HK$000 &7t HK$'000 F/& 7T

Within 90 days 90H A 141,441 163,904
Between 91 and 180 days 91H £180H 13 1,041
Between 181 and 365 days 181 H £365H 5 78
Over 365 days 365H I + - 526

141,459 165,549

The aged analysis of accounts and bills receivable that are
not considered to be impaired is as follows:

I ARA8 A E IR RE 2 BRI & 2 E 2 BRER
DATEE

2017 2016
—E-tF —E-RF
HK$’'000 F#T  HK$000 T/&TT

Neither past due nor impaired 7 #i 8 8k 7 H 35 &l (& 127,640 152,218
Less than 90 days past due # 2§ 4 FA90H 13,802 12,440
Over 90 days past due #1 #8890 H 17 891

141,459 165,549

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

b 45380 9 R (2 8 UK 5B 3 e b B
REGEZES  HEF 3 SRR
ﬁo
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21. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

(continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21.

22.

EWRERERE #)

BB AN EINERE L BRFR P RE
TEAEERRRE 2CBIRP - BEAEL
B ARREEMRAL UEFEHAFSE
SIELRERE REASGEERAEEX
it MERDBRE 2B0EDR - NEE
W ERZFEHRTAEMERRKEMBER
R ZHE-

HERERELER
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF

HK$'000 F#7T  HK$000 F75 7T

Cash and bank balances IR & KR 1T 4584 101,923 133,232
Time deposits with original maturity of less than three months

REFNMBELR=MEA 2 EHEFERX 101,689 70,736
Time deposits with original maturity of over three months

when acquired AU HE B R E B B B 481 = {8 A 2 & 837 3k 572,204 461,737
Cash and cash equivalents 3¢ N £ R IR & E B 775,816 665,705
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
approximately HK$11,185,000 (2016: HK$20,026,000).
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one week and one year depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates.

The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

B F5 R 22 it s

31 March 2017 —E—+#=H=+—H

22 BEeREFELSEE (&)

RBERR AEBUARBHEZES
RRITHE#R#93211,185,0008 70 (ZZF— 7~
4 : 20,026,000 70) - ARBTSERLE
RE AT o AT - AR IR B B A b HNE &
GOl k&R SEERGEEERTE A5EH
AEBAEEITINEEBR ZRITEARB HIR
REAME -

FTRSRE BIRTERFE 2B R
BoEHERZBRE—BE—FT1E B
TR BRLBRME  BABEH
BRFIRtE -

RITEREEHERFEEEERTFZER
17 A ESE AR
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23. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payable as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the date of goods
received, is as follows:

23. ENRIEREE

Rz Em B AER  BNERARRER
BRERARZREDFTWAT

2017
—B—tfF
HK$'000 F % 7t

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000 F/& 7T

Within 90 days 90H A 129,954 208,753
Between 91 and 180 days 91 H £180H 14,757 17,189
Between 181 and 365 days 181H £365H 547 56
Over 365 days 365H A 3,564 816

148,822 226,814

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 90-day terms.

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ERERIBNGET R B—MRZAR0R R NE

fito

24. TTHEERMTIA

2017 2016
=E-iF —E-REF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =Rt BE af
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTHERT TR THET

Forward currency contracts & HRSMNE & #) -

= 519

The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts were
the same as their fair values. The above transactions
involving derivative financial instruments were with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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25.

Notes to Financial Statements

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

The Group had entered into various forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures which did
not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Net fair value
losses on non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to
HK$530,000 were charged to the statement of profit or loss
during the year (2016: HK$220,000) (note 7).

The fair values of derivative financial instruments are based
on quoted prices.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had available
banking facilities amounting to HK$99,000,000 (2016:
HK$99,000,000) of which approximately HK$805,000
(2016: HK$1,331,000) was utilised. The banking facilities
were supported by corporate guarantees executed by the
Company.

24.

25.

B F5 R 22 it s

31 March 2017 —E—+#=H=+—H

TTEEmMIA (&)

AEECFUSHERAEBSNERERE
A NS & AR IE 2 INER K - JEE
BETAET R 2 A F{EEEFE A530,000
BT (ZZ— /N4 1 220,000 70) ERFER
SFABEERSP (M) -

TESBRTEZ A FEIRBRETE-

IRITRLE
WR-_ZE—+F=ZA=+—H AXEBH
A] B F 48 77 B & $£99,000,000/8 T (= &
— 73 4F 199,000,000/ L) - KR E gAY
805,000/ 7T ( =& — /X4 : 1,331,000%
TL) cSRITEVE AR AR A AIER -
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26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 26. EEBIEEFE

190

Revaluation of
buildings and
investment
properties
BFER
REYEEME
HK$’000 F % 7T

At 1 April 20156 R=—Z—HEFMA—H 20,228
Deferred tax debited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 10) F AT Afr & Bm KR 2 EERE (H:H10) (2,316)
Exchange realignment 4 58 £ (1,034)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 R =T —RF=ZA=+—HBRZFT—-XFMOA—H 16,878
Deferred tax debited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 10) F Nt AfrEBm KX 2 EERIE (H7E10) (281)
Deferred tax charged to equity during the year & Rt A2 2 BT 18 4,328
Exchange realignment % [& 38 % (1,048)
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF=HA=+—H 19,877
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR Zf15E

31 March 2017 —ZE—+#=H=+—H

Authorised: A€ :
Balance at beginning and end of year

FOREREH

Issued and fully paid: B 217 K& T :
Balance at beginning of year 4 ] 4 %

Share options exercised (note (a))

BEITEERE (MiE@)

Repurchased (note (b)) & @ ( Ff 3£ (b))

Balance at end of year & % 4 &

27. A
[iidv)
Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each HK$’000
SEREE10BTZEEREE FTER
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF —E-+tF —E-RF
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
695,842,445 688,490,445 69,584 68,849
7,257,000 10,328,000 726 1,033
(3,406,000) (2,976,000) (341) (298)
69,969 69,584

699,693,445 695,842,445
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continuea)

Shares (continueq)

192

During the year, the movements in share capital were as

follows:

(a)

The subscription rights attaching to 305,000 (2016:
1,856,000), 669,000 (2016: 5,713,000), 1,660,000
(2016: 1,008,000), 2,337,000 (2016: 1,639,000)
and 2,286,000 (2016: 112,000) share options were
exercised at the subscription prices of HK$0.972,
HK$1.196, HK$1.58, HK$1.25 and HK$1.908 per
share, respectively. These resulted in the issue of
7,257,000 (2016: 10,328,000) shares of HKS$0.1
each and a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of approximately HK$11,002,000 (2016:
HK$12,492,000). An amount of HK$1,717,000 (2016:
HK$3,639,000) was transferred from the share option
reserve to the share premium account upon the
exercise of the share options.

During the year, the Company repurchased its
3,406,000 (2016: 2,976,000) ordinary shares at prices
ranging from HK$1.32 to HK$2.06 per share at a
total consideration of approximately HK$6,276,000
(2016: HK$4,686,000). 3,406,000 (2016: 2,976,000)
repurchased ordinary shares were cancelled during
the year. Details of the repurchases are disclosed
under the heading of “Purchase, redemption or sale
of the Company’s listed securities” in the Report
of the Directors. The premium of approximately
HK$5,935,000 (2016: HK$4,388,000) paid on the
repurchase of these shares was debited to the share
premium account and an amount of HK$341,000
(2016: HK$298,000) was transferred from retained
profits of the Company to the capital redemption
reserve.
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27. BRA& (&)
BB ()
ERRAZEEMT

M ®m305,000f (=& — X &F:
1,856,00013 ) * 669,00015 ( =& — <
% :5,713,00017) ~ 1,660,00015 ( =
= — ;X4 1 1,008,00017 ) 2,337,000
B (ZZF—7"F: 1,639,00019) %
2,286,00017 (= Z — 7S : 112,000
MIBRELCRBESNERRBRER
0.972% 7L~ 1.1968 7L 1,688 T »
1.25% 70 2 1.9088 L2 R EE T
{# o [l 1t 3 177,257,0000% ( = Z — %
£ :10,328,0000% ) TR E 0.1 T
RO AKNBERZBRENRE
#1/11,002,000 7T (ZF — < F:
12,492,000/ 7T ) - AR REIETTIE %
B ERETS1,717,0008 0 (= Z
—7N4F 1 3,639,000/ 7T ) EEE RN H
BiR-

RAFEE  KARWKERI.328 T
£2.06/8 7T 2 {8 1& 8 [2 H 3,406,000
fgEimAg (ZF — /X% 2,976,000
f%) - 8RB 49 56,276,000 7T ( =
T — 7N 1 4,686,0007 JT) © T8 [
23,406,000 Fi@k (ZF — X F:
2,976,000/% ) B ARG ErEE o BB 2
HEREFeREANHE BELH
ERRNFZLMHES] —BREZE -
51 3% 55 W1 P 2 A5 2 5 {8 495,935,000
BT (ZZ— 754 1 4,388,000/ L) B
BRORERT MR WEHARAQA
1R % R 88 #5341,0008 70 (ZZF— X
£ : 298,000/ 7T ) 2 & A& B {5 -
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME
Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme included the Company’s
directors (including independent non-executive directors),
other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group, customers of the Group, any person
or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, and any shareholder
of the Group. The Share Option Scheme became effective
on 29 August 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date
and will expire in 2021.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes adopted by the Group may not
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company
in a general meeting, the maximum number of shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of grant.

28.

B F5 R 22 it s

31 March 2017 —E—+#=H=+—H

BRETER RO EBEE

R AERTE

AABRMBRAE S ([BERE) &
ESB M RRAAREEBRINELERZ
RERSEE -BREASZABERSEE
BRARFRZES (BRBIIIFATES)
AEBZHEMESR AEEZEmIARFH
R AREZEF - AAKERHEHTE 5
BREMBRMFZERMALHERRAE
B{EMIRR - BREAEN T ——F/\A
“TABRAER MREZHEHERTIN HR
ZBEEFARTFE IR _F-_—FFH-

RTT AR I B A i ot 81 K A< 5= [ R AR O (7]
H BT BRI M RTTEZ BB
PerEm Al 1T 2 Iin 488K NSBBA R A
EAAIRS 2 BT 230%  BRIFE AR A
BRERRIERAE EiE BRIRBERLA
HA |F A28 A B E 17 AR R BB A A At
B MARREMEMBRESERE 2B
i (BREETE EHEEERTEZBR
B)MABEEERSEERITRAEITL
i ias TEEBARRNKELAHE %
TR 21% °
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

194

AWARD SCHEME (continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on that date and with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be determined by the board of directors of the Company
at its absolute discretion. This period will expire no later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the options. At the
time of grant of the options, the Company may specify a
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may
be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, and the
amount payable on acceptance of an offer is HK$1.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to
be issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average of
closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (jii) the nominal value of the share of the Company on
the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 28. BBIRETTEIRRDERE (&)
AWARD SCHEME (continueq)

Share option scheme (continued) BARRESTE (&)
The following share options were outstanding under the THEEIRE AT NERETE T RITHE 28
Share Option Scheme during the year: AR HE -
Number of share options
EREHR
Price of the
Exercise ~ Company's
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017  of share options* Exercise period of share options options*™  of options***
RERE
RZE-RE RIZ-t§ BREz  RHAHZ
SRERLTER BA-B  EnRE  FRE FAEX ZBST-B BREZRLRM BREZTREE fiEE*  FOAIRE™
HK$HE T HKS% T
pershare®R  per shareB iR
Directors £Z
Mr. Chen Ming-hsitng, 54,000 - - (54,000) - 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
Mickey " Z2-1E-AthR CE-tE-A-BECRC-EMNACTAR
REkSAE 72,000 - - (72,000) - 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-AE-AZTZA ZB-AE-ACtZRECRC-FAAZTAA
54,000 - - 54,000) - 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZB-AE-ACTZE CER-tE-A-BECRC-ENACTAR
54,000 - - 54,000) - 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90

ZE-AE-AZfZR ZE-N\E-RA-BECEC-ENACTAR

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, 150,000 - (150,000) - - 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 125
Helen ZE-RF-AthB ZB-tE-A-BECR--FNAZTAR
EARRL 200,000 - (200000) - - 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1908 190
ZE-AE-AZTZA ZB-AE-ACtZRECRC-FAAZTAA
150,000 - (150,000) - - 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1908 190
ZE-AE-AZTZR ZB-tE-A-BECR--FNVAZTAR
150,000 - - - 150000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1908 190

ZE-AE-AZfZR ZE-N\E-RA-BECEC-ENACTAR

Passed away on 14 April 2016 " RZF—/"F M A+ M HFtE
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

196

AWARD SCHEME (continueq)

BRESTER KRG RS (@)

Share option scheme (continued) BARRELTE (&
Number of share options
EREHA
Price of the
Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017 of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
RZF-AE RoZ-tE BREz  RHAHZ
SEELRART mA-8  EARE  EAGE  FARX ZAZT-B BREZREEM BREZGRAR TRE*  RARRE™
HK$HE 7T HKS# 7T
pershare®R  per shareB ik
Directors (continueq)
22
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 150,000 - (150,000) - - 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
fRGRE ZF-ZF-AtRB ZR-ME-A-BE-R--F/VAZTAB
150,000 - (150,000) - - 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
Z3-ZF-A+1A ZF-nF-A-BE-F--FN\A=TAR
240,000 - - - 240,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
ZE-mE-AtiE ZE-mE-ATABEZR-FNVAZTIB
180,000 - - - 180,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZE-mE-AtiE Z3-nf-A-BEZR-FNAZTI\A
180,000 - - - 180,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZE-mE-AtiE ZE-~E-A-BEZE--FN\AZTAR
200,000 - - - 200,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZF-LF-AthE ZE-RF-AThBEZR--§NAZTNB
150,000 - - - 150,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZF-RF-AthB  ZB-AE-A-BECR--F/\AZTAB
150,000 = = = 150,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“B-IE-AthR CE-tE-A-BECRC-FNACTAR
200,000 - - - 200,000 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 190
ZE-AE-AZTZR ZR-AE-A-tZRECRC-FNAZTAR
150,000 = = = 150,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZB-AE-ACTCH CE-tE-A-BECRC-FNACTAR
150,000 = = = 150,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
“B-AE-ACTZH ZE-N\F-A-BECRC-FNACTR
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continueq)

31 March 2017 —
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BRESTER KRG RS (@)

Share option scheme (continued) BARRELTE (&
Number of share options
EREHA
Price of the
Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017 of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
RZF-AE RoZ-tE BREz  RHAHZ
SEELRART mA-8  EARE  EAGE  FARX ZAZT-B BREZREEM BREZGRAR TRE*  RARRE™
HK$HE 7T HKS# 7T
pershare®R  per shareB ik
Directors (continueq)
g3(4)
Mr. Wong Hel-chiu 160,000 - (160,000) - - 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
BERRE ZE-RE-AtAR CE-RE-ATARECEC-SNACTAR
120,000 - (120,000) - - 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZE-mE-AtiE ZF-nF-A-BE-F--FN\A=TAR
120,000 - (120,000) - - 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
ZE-mE-AtiE ZE-~E-A-BEZE--FN\AZTAR
160,000 - (160,000) - - 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 t0 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZF-1F-AthE ZER-If-ATABAECRC-FNACTAR
120,000 - (120,000) - - 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZF-LF-AthE ZE-~E-A-BEZE--FN\AZTAR
120,000 - (120,000) - - 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZF-LF-AthE ZF-tF-A-BE-F=-FN\AZTAR
160,000 - (160,000) - - 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 190
ZE-AE-AZTZE B AE-ACtZRECRC-FNAZTAR
120,000 - (120,000) - - 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZB-AE-ACTCH CE-tE-A-BECRC-FNACTAR
120,000 = = = 120,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
“B-AE-ACTZH ZE-N\F-A-BECRC-FNACTR
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continued)

28. IR ESTEIRRMDERBET 8 ()

Share option scheme (continued) BARRELTE (&
Number of share options
EREHA
Price of the
Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
RZF-RE RoB-tE BREz  RHAHZ
SEELRART mA-8  EARE  EAGE  FARX ZAST-B BREZREEM BREZGRAR TRE*  EARRE™
HK$HE 7T HKS# 7T
pershare®R  per shareB iR
Directors (continueq)
g2 (%)
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, 120,000 - (120,000) - - 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
Anthony, SBS, JP Z3-mE-AtRE ZE-RE-ATRBECRC-FNACTAE
AkEEE 90,000 - 90,000) - - 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1580 157
REHES: ZE-mE-AtAE “5-RF-R-AE-E-fNAZTIA
ATat 90,000 - (90,000) - - 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
“F-mE-AtAB ZB-AE-A-BECR--F/VAZTAB
90,000 = (90,000) = - 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZF-RF-AthB  ZB-AE-A-BECR--F/VAZTAB
90,000 = (90,000) = - 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“B-IF-AthR CE-tF-A-BECRC-FNACTAR
120,000 - (120,000) - - 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 190
ZB-AF-ACTZR CE-AF-ACTCRECEC-%)ICTAR
90,000 = (90,000) = - 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZB-AE-ACTZH CE-tF-A-BECRC-FNACTAR
90,000 = = = 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZB-AF-ACTZH ZE-N\F-A-BECR--FMACTAR
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continueq)

BRESTER KRG RS (&)

Share option scheme (continued) BARRELTE (&
Number of share options
EREHA
Price of the
Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
RZF-RE RoB-tE BREz  RHAHZ
SEELRART mA-8  EARE  EAGE  FARX ZAST-B BREZREEM BREZGRAR TRE*  EARRE™
HK$HE 7T HKS# 7T
pershare®R  per shareB iR
Directors (continueq)
E3(%)
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel 160,000 - (160,000 - - 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
RiExrt ZB-RE-AtAR CE-RE-ATARECEC-SNACTAR
120,000 - (120,000) - - 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZE-mE-AtAE Z3-nF-A-BE-E--FN\A=TAR
120,000 - (120,000) - - 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1,580 157
ZE-mE-AtAE ZE-~E-A-BEZE--FN\AZTAR
160,000 - (160,000) - - 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 t0 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZF-RF-AthE ZER-IE-ATARECRC-FNAZTAR
120,000 - (120,000) - - 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZE-LF-AthE ZE-~E-A-BEZE--FN\AZTAR
120,000 - (120,000) - - 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZE-LF-AthE ZF-tF-A-BE-F=-FN\AZTAR
160,000 - (160,000) - - 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 190
ZE-AE-AZTZR R AE-ACtZRECRC-FNAZTAR
120,000 - (120,000) - - 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZB-AE-ACTZE CE-tF-A-BECRC-FNACTAR
120,000 = = = 120,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZB-AF-ACTZH ZE-N\F-A-BECR--FMACTAR
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continueq)

BRESTER KRG RS (@)

Share option scheme (continued) BARRELTE (&
Number of share options
EREHA
Price of the
Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017 of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
RZF-AE RoZ-tE BREz  RHAHZ
SEELRART mA-8  EARE  EAGE  FARX ZAZT-B BREZREEM BREZGRAR TRE*  RARRE™
HK$HE 7T HKS# 7T
pershare®R  per shareB ik
Directors (continueq)
22
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 90,000 - - - 90,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.9
RRLAE ZF-ZF-At=B  ZR-WE-A-BE-R--F/\A=T/B
90,000 = = - 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
Z3-ZF-A+1A Z3-mE-A-BE-F--FN\A-TAR
90,000 = = = 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
Z3-ZF-AtRB ZR-1f-A-BECR--FNVAZTAB
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 t0 28 August 2021 1.580 157
ZB-RE-AtAR CE-RE-ATARECEC-SNACTAR
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZE-mE-AtiE Z3-nF-A-BE-F--FN\A=TAR
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZE-mE-AtiE ZE-~E-A-BEZE--FN\AZTAR
120,000 - - - 120,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 t0 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZF-5F-AthE ZER-If-ATABAECRC-FNACTAR
90,000 = = = 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZE-LF-AthE ZE-nE-A-BEZE--FN\AZTAR
90,000 = = = 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZE-LF-AthE ZF-tF-A-BE-F=-FN\AZTAR
120,000 - - - 120,000 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 190
ZE-AE-AZTZR ZR-AE-A-tZRECRC-FNAZTAR
90,000 = = = 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZB-AE-ACTCH CE-tE-A-BECRC-FNACTAR
90,000 = = = 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
“B-AE-ACTZH ZE-N\F-A-BECRC-FNACTR
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continueq)
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BRESTER KRG RS (@)

Share option scheme (continued) BARRELTE (&
Number of share options
EREHA
Price of the
Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017 of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
RZF-AE RoZ-tE BREz  RHAHZ
SEELRART mA-8  EARE  EAGE  FARX ZAZT-B BREZREEM BREZGRAR TRE*  RARRE™
HK$HE 7T HKS% T
pershare®R  per shareB ik
Directors (continueq)
g3(4)
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, 90,000 - (90,000) - - 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
Steven Z3-ZF-A+1A “3-nf-A-BEZRC-FNAZTI\A
AFIRE 120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
ZE-mE-AtiE ZE-mE-ATABEZR-FNVAZTIB
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZE-mE-AtiE ZF-nF-A-BE-F--FN\A=TAR
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
Z3-mE-A+5A Z-NE-R-HE-E2--£NA-1)\A
120,000 - (120,000) - - 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZF-1F-AthE ZER-If-ATABAECRC-FNACTAR
90,000 = (90,000) = - 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZF-RF-AthB  ZB-AE-A-BECR--F/\AZTAB
90,000 = (90,000) = - 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“B-IE-AthR CE-tE-A-BECRC-FNACTAR
120,000 - - - 120,000 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 190
ZE-AE-AZTZR ZR-AE-A-tZRECRC-FNAZTAR
90,000 = = = 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZB-AE-ACTCH CE-tE-A-BECRC-FNACTAR
90,000 = = = 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
“B-AE-ACTZH ZE-N\F-A-BECRC-FNACTR
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continued)

BRESTER KRG RS (&)

Share option scheme (continued) BARRELTE (&
Number of share options
BREHE
Price of the
Exercise ~ Company's
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017 of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options**
RERE
RIB-RE RZB-t§ BREz  BHAHZ
SRERLIER BA-B  ERARE  ERGE  EREX ZAS1-B BREZEHES BREZTRAE EE"  AOAIRE™
HK$HE 7T HKS# 7T
pershare®R  per shareB iR
Directors (continueq)
E2(4)
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel 60,000 - - - 60,000 13 January 2012 13 January 2012 to 28 August 2021 0972 09
REELL ZF-25-AtZR ZE-CF-ATZAECEC-SNAZTNB
45,000 - - - 45,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 0972 09
ZF-25-fA+ZR ZE-ZE-A-BECZZ-ENACTAR
45,000 - - - 45,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 09
ZF-Z5-AtZR ZE-RE-A-BECRZ-FNACTAR
120,000 - - - 120,000 15 January 2013 15 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 119 119
“2-Z5-A+EA ZE-CF-ATRAECEC-FNAZTAR
90,000 = = - 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
ZE-Z5-A+tER ZE-RE-A-BECRZ-FMAZTAR
90,000 - - - 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 1o 28 August 2021 119 119
Z3-Z5-A+tRR ZE-RE-A-BECZZ-ENACTAR
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
ZE-mE-A+AR “E-ME-A+/AE-E--ENAZTAA
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 1o 28 August 2021 1.580 157
Z3-mE-AtAR Z3-af-B-AE-Z--FNA-tAR
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 Augusl 2021 1.580 1.57
“E-mE-A+A —E-p F-f-HEZE--fNR-1N\A
120,000 - - - 120,000 19 January 2015 19 January 201510 28 August 2021 1.250 1.2
ZE-RF-AthA S-1F-RATABE-E--¥N\AZT/R
90,000 = = = 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“E-1F-AthR —E-p F-A-HEZE--fNR-1N\A
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 1o 28 August 2021 1.250 1.2
ZE-RF-AthB ZE-tE-R-BECRC-FNA-TAR
120,000 - - - 120,000 22 January 2016 2 January 2016 0 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
“E-NE-AZtZA  ZE-AE-AZtZRE-E--ENAZTAA
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 1o 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-RE-AZTZR ZE-tE-A-BECRC-FNA-TAR
90,000 = = = 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-AE-AZfZB ZE-N\F-A-BECRZ-FNACTAR
9,474,000 - (4,040,000) (234,000 5,200,000
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28. IERETTEIR R EBFE (&)

Share option scheme (continued) IR E ()
Number of share options
BREHE
Price of the
Exercise ~ Company's
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017  of share options* Exercise period of share options options*™ of options***
RERE
RIB-RE RZB-t§ BREz  BHAHZ
SRERLIER BA-B  ERARE  ERGE  EREX ZAS1-B BREZEHES BREZTRAE EE"  AOAIRE™
HKS# T HKS% T
pershare®R  per shareB iR
Other employees
HitEs
In aggregate 168,000 - (80,000) 48,000) 40,000 18 January 2012 13 January 2012 to 28 August 2021 0972 09
a4 “F-Z5-A+=R ZE-CE-A+=AECE--ENAZTAR
131,000 - (60,000) (41,000) 30,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 0972 09
“F-ZF-A+=H ZF-ZF-f-BE-F--FN\AZTAR
410,000 - (165,000) (215,000) 30,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 095
“F-ZF-A+=H “E-mE-A-AE-EC-FN\AZTAR
424,000 - (72,000 (240,000) 112,000 15 January 2013 15 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 119 119
ZE-Z-f+1R “E-ZF-AtRAZ-E--FNAZTAR
368,000 - (48,000 (210,000) 110,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 119 119
ZF-ZF-A+1A —F-mE-A-BE-F--FN\AZTAR
657,000 - (159,000) (210,000) 288,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1196 119
Z3-=5-A+1B “E-Rf-f-RE-E--£NA-HNA
15,000 - - - 15,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
“Z-=5-A+1A —E-RE-f-BE-E--FNAZTAR
920,000 - (160,000 (120,000) 640,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
ZE-ME-AtAR ZE-ME-ATAREZEC-ENAZTNR
742,000 - (172,000) (90,000) 480,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
Z3-RE-A+5B “E-Rf-f-RE-E--£NA-HNA
798,000 - (228,000) (90,000) 480,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
ZE-RmE-A+AA —E-RE-f-BE-E--FNAZTAR
1,080,000 - (160,000 (180,000) 740,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.2
ZZ-a5-AthE ZE-RF-ATARECZEC-SNAZTNR
894,000 - (204,000) (135,000) 555,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZE-RF-AthA ZE-~E-A-AEZEC-FNAZTAR
1,293,000 - (543,000 (135,000) 615,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.2
ZE-RE-AthB ZE-t§-R-BECZ--§NA-T/R
1,536,000 - (668,000 (144,000) 724,000 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-AE-AZTZB R AE-ACtZRECRC-FNAZTAR
1,236,000 - 498,000) (108,000) 630,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-RE-AZTZA ZE-tE-A-AECEC-FNAZTAR
1,236,000 - - (108,000 1,128,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-AE-AZfZB ZE-N\F-A-BECIRZ-ENAZTAR
11,908,000 - (3,217,000 (2,074,000 6,617,000
21,382,000 - (7,257,000 (2,308,0000 11,817,000
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

204

AWARD SCHEME (continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding
during the year:

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

*k

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date
of grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing
price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of
grant of the options.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$2.16 per
share (2016: HK$1.68 per share).

The 7,257,000 (2016: 10,328,000) share options exercised
during the year resulted in the issue of 7,257,000 (2016:
10,328,000) ordinary shares of the Company and new share
capital of approximately HK$726,000 (2016: HK$1,033,000)
and share premium of approximately HK$10,276,000 (2016:
HK$11,459,000), as further detailed in note 27 to the
financial statements. An amount of HK$1,717,000 (2016:
HK$3,639,000) was transferred from the share option
reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise of
the share options.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 340,000, 1,005,000, 3,100,000, 3,010,000 and
4,362,000 share options with exercise prices of HK$0.972,
HK$1.196, HK$1.58, HK$1.25 and HK$1.908 per share,
respectively, outstanding under the Share Option Scheme,
which altogether represented approximately 1.7% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 11,817,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional issued share capital of approximately
HK$1,182,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$17,334,000 (before issue expenses).

As at the date of this report, the number of securities of the
Company available for issue under the share option scheme
was approximately 25,085,000, representing approximately
3.6% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this report.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, 7,300,000 share
options were granted and their fair value was estimated at
approximately HK$2,733,000. The Group recognised share
option expense of HK$1,122,000 (2016: HK$2,333,000)
during the year.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

206

AWARD SCHEME (continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

The fair value of share options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2016 was estimated as at the date of
grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the respective model used
for the year ended 31 March 2016:

Date of share options granted: 22 January

2016
Volatility (%): 34.69
Risk-free interest rate (%): 1.38
Expected life of options (year): 5.60
Dividend yield (%): 3.74

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of
future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

Share award scheme

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company on 3 June 2010 (the “Adoption Date”). The
specific objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to
recognise the contributions of certain employees of any
member of the Group and to provide them with incentives
in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continued)
Share award scheme (continued)

The Board may, from time to time, at its sole discretion
select any employee (the “Selected Employee”) of any
member of the Group for participation in the Share Award
Scheme and determine the number of awarded shares
to be awarded to the Selected Employees by taking into
consideration matters including (without limitation) the
general financial condition of the Group and the rank and
performance of the relevant Selected Employee. The Board
is entitled to impose any conditions (including a period of
continued service within the Group after the date of the
final approval by the Board of the total amount of shares
to be awarded to the relevant Selected Employee on a
single occasion pursuant to the Share Award Scheme), as
it deems appropriate in its absolute discretion with respect
to the entitlement of the Selected Employee to the awarded
shares.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded
shares which will result in the nominal value of the shares
awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme
exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of shares which
may be awarded to the Selected Employee under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of
the 10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date and such
date of early termination as determined by the Board.

Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 3 June 2010.

No shares were awarded under the Share Award Scheme
for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.
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29.

30.

208

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 9 January 2017, the Group entered into a joint
venture agreement with an independent third party, Vast
King International Holdings Limited, to establish Alliance
Investment with registered capital of US$28,120,000.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Group transferred its entire
equity interests in Star Praised Limited and its subsidiary
(the “Star Praised Group”) and Empress Choice Limited
and its subsidiary (the “Empress Choice Group”) to Alliance
Investment at a cash consideration of approximately
US$20,000,000 (subject to adjustment), of which
approximately US$8,000,000 was used for paying up the
Group’s 40% equity interests in Alliance Investment. The
difference between the final adjusted consideration amount
and US$8,000,000 was paid by Alliance Investment to the
Group in cash. Vast King International Holdings Limited
subscribed for 60% equity interests in Alliance Investment
at a cash consideration of approximately US$12,000,000.
On 1 March 2017, the Star Praised Group and the Empress
Choice Group ceased to be the Group’s subsidiaries and
became associates (note 18).
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fif = Vast King International Holdings Limited
LA BR & X 8 4912,000,0003 7t R B Alliance
InvestmentZ60%fx#E - M T —+HF=H
— B - Star Praised [# }2 Empress Choicefe
ETHAREBZHMBAR  MKAKEA
al (M43E18) ©
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30. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 30. HEWB AR (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE-E—tFE=ZA=1+T—HLEE
Notes
=2 HK$’000 Fi& T

Net assets disposed of: FT i & & E/F & :

Property, plant and equipment ¥ % « B &= & &% & 14 86,232
Prepaid land lease payments T8 + i 0 & k78 15 23,078
Deposits paid for the lease of a parcel of land T & — 18 i 3 7 B2 i & 27,546
136,856

Exchange fluctuation reserve [& X, % &) f# & 7,279
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries i & i B 2 7 2 Wzt 4,167
148,302

Satisfied by: LA T 51 5 = % 1+ -

Investments in associates 4 & A &% & 58,724
Cash consideration I & {8 89,578
148,302
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30. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 30. HEMBEATE (2
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FHEMBARMEL 2R RREEEMR
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: ANFBEDITAT :

HK$’000 F & T

Cash consideration and net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries

EHELENBARZESREUKE SRR EBYRAFE 89,578
31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 3. WEHRILH
(a) As lessor (@ EAHBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 16) AEERBEERNLZHEHBELE
under operating lease arrangements, with leases Y (iE16) - OB <HEBN T
negotiated for terms ranging from two to five years. MEERF - HAGEK —RINEKEP
The terms of the leases generally also required the THRFES

tenants to pay security deposits.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIER NEEREHEBFEI 2
total future minimum lease receivables under non- DA BGH B L) 2 R R&IEHE LUK
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling HBREZEHERAT

due as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—REF
HK$’000 Fi&t  HK$'000 F/& T

Within one year — & A 9,268 5,554

In the second to fifth years, inclusive
F_EZERNF(RIEEEMSE) 20,828 4,439
After five years B 14 525 —
30,621 9,993
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31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its land and buildings
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

B F5 R 2 it 5t
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31. EEBORH ()

(b) EREAA

AEERBEEHOLHEAEHET
T RET BOBITEENT—=
PO o

RIREHR - REBIRBET AT REHEE
Kz RREIRFL R85 2 5/ E
ERIAT :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 T8t  HK$'000 F/& T

Within one year —F A 1,646 10,818

In the second to fifth years, inclusive
“EENE (BEEREME) 76 8,202
1,722 19,020

In addition, at 31 March 2016, the operating lease
rentals for certain retail shops were based on the
higher of a fixed rental and contingent rent based
on sales of these retail shops pursuant to the terms
and conditions as set out in the respective rental
agreements. As the future sales of these retail shops
could not be accurately determined, the relevant
contingent rent has not been included above and only
the minimum lease commitments have been included
in the above table.

AN R=ZF—RE=ZA=1+—H0 R
BERNESHERZ 2 BGRRGG 5T
TEESzLEAVBESKETRES
RRETEEMEEETE 2R
T (UREERE)ET -HRTREE
BETZETEEMoRREER
WERTEREEESATAES MER
EREBLEE-
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32. COMMITMENTS 32. A&iE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B | SCPRES1 (o) Pk il 2 48 & FR Z9 A IE S
in note 31(b) above, the Group had contracted for the REEE T NI E AR AR LG4 -

following capital commitments:

()  As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had () PAREHR ANEER THHR 2 HIE
commitments in respect of management fees payable NeE@BETHUE I BB E&E
in relation to certain land in Vietnam falling due as R
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tHF ZE—RF

HK$’000 T8t  HK$'000 F/& T

Within one year — & A 566 1,372
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
F_ZFLF (BEEEMF) 2,263 5,489
After five years B 1% 13,531 63,297
16,360 70,158
(i)  As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had (i) RMERR TKBEFEYE BEK
capital commitments in respect of property, plant and B2 BEARAENT

equipment as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 &7t  HK$'000 F/& T

Contracted but not provided for & 5T #4718 7k 844 :

— construction of factory buildings — i &E X E T2 7,020 19,594
- purchase of software — B & 8 {f 546 =
7,566 19,594
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32. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(i)

Other commitments

B F5 R 2 it 5t
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32. FiIE (&)

)

HK$’000 T & T

H A

2017
—E—+tF

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000 T 7T

Contracted but not provided for 2 5T 4118 &K B 4

— establishment of production plants in Mainland China

— R B AR S E R E 132,846 132,846

— lease of parcels of land in Viethnam
—HE M i 35,084 46,103
167,930 178,949

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, during the year, the
Group paid rental expenses of HK$950,000 (2016:
HK$935,000) to Kingmaker Footwear Company
Limited, a related company of which Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen, director and shareholder of the
Company, is also a director and shareholder, and
of HK$4,000 to Mr. Chen Yi-wu, the son of Mdm.
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen. During the year ended
31 March 2016, the Group paid rental expenses of
HK$6,000 to Mr. Chen Ming-hsing, Mickey, director
and shareholder of the Company.

The rental expenses were determined with reference
to the market conditions existing at the time when the
respective rental agreements were entered into.

The related party transactions above also constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

33. AR

(@)

BRUL SRR EM A DFrEtal 2 2
S REBRFRNE MBS A GE
EREROHAERAAXNEEER
950,000 7T ( =& — 7<% : 935,000/
L) MARBEZEZRRRER KT
MAZARESRRE  WAHEFIHKZ
T 7 FRRZE 5 5 4 X 44,0008 7T - I
HE-_Z—XEZA=Z+—HIEFE
A REB AR A R E SRR R
5 A S S & & 6,000 5T °

ZEHLERN2ETLEBHEED
RERZMAMETE -

LR RERE T R 5 IR LT AR IS 14A
EERCHEERS -
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BHARS (&)
(continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) FEBHREEAE WM
Group:
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF

HK$’000 T & T HK$'000 T & 7T

Short term employee benefits 2 Hi {8 8 1& F| 13,419 9,253
Post-employment benefits 1& F 1% 4& ¥ 72 36
Equity-settled share option expense Az &5 v BRI X 543 727

Total compensation paid to key management personnel

TG EREEABNBRME R 14,034 10,016
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included EAESEMe 2 EMFBIHNTIER
in note 8 to the financial statements. FMIEES ©
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 34. mEHE S z2ERMIA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZERERTENMERRCEERERT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
2017 —E—tHF
Financial assets MgEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
ERR AHEE
L7 MBEE st
HK$’000 T#&7t HK$000 F#&t HK$000 T
Available-for-sale investments 7] {it {1 & #& & - 530 530
Accounts and bills receivable &L BRIE & Z & 141,459 - 141,459
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
STAENFIE REREMEREREBE HBEE 4,457 - 4,457
Due from an associate &Y — &&= 2 7 708 11,116 - 11,116
Cash and cash equivalents IR & X ZEIE & H B 775,816 - 775,816
932,848 530 933,378
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 4. BERE S Z2EMIA #)
CATEGORY (continuead)
2017 —E—tF
Financial liabilities S =RE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
REB SR AE
ZHBaRE
HK$’000 T % T
Accounts and bills payable & 8RIE & Z & 148,822
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities and other payables
HABHEBERAEMENRECHBKEE 101,239
250,061
2016 —E—REF
Financial assets BBEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
=593 A E
W5k IE MHEE Bt
HK$'000 Ti#7x  HK$'000 FiEr  HK$'000 Ti87T
Available-for-sale investments A] 4t H £ 1% & - 489 489
Accounts and bills receivable & W B8 & Z 1% 165,549 - 165,549
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
STATBRRIE - e REMEREE  PBEE 5,827 - 5,827
Cash and cash equivalents & M ERIBEEE 665,705 = 665,705
837,081 489 837,570
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 4. BERE S Z2EMIA (®)
CATEGORY (continuea)
2016 AN S
Financial liabilities S =RE
Financial
liabilities at Financial
fair value through liabilities at
profit or loss — amortised
held for trading cost Total
BATEFA
BaRoMB REEKATE
BE-RHIEEER ZUBaE Bt
HK$'000 T  HK$'000 FiEr  HK$'000 Fi87T
Accounts and bills payable J& - B8R I8 & Z 1% - 226,814 226,814
Financial liabilities included in accrued
liabilities and other payables
HABHEBEREMENRECHBKEE - 135,967 135,967
Derivative financial instruments $74 ¢ & T & 519 = 519
519 362,781 363,300
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35. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

218

INSTRUMENTS

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

3. TRMTAZAFEER

TRINTAEEEBRTAZAFENER

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: &
Assets measured at fair value: EATEFEZEE:
Fair value measurement using
AFEFERFEA
Quoted prices Significant
in active observable
markets inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total
WERBMEZ EXTHEGA
HRE (F—-4) HE(E=§) &t
HK$000 T#7t HK$000 FEx HK$000 T4t
31 March 2017: —E—t&=H=+—A:
Available-for-sale investments: A fff &84 :
Listed investments F & 530 - 530
31 March 2016: —ZE— A "F=HA=+—H:
Available-for-sale investments: A HE R4
Listed investments F % %& 489 = 489
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35. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 3. TMIEC2AFEEBH &)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value: BRAVENEZERE:

Fair value measurement using
N EFEMEA
Quoted prices Significant
in active observable

markets inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total
RIERMSZ ERABEHA
BE(F—H) HE(F-R) &t
HK$'000 T3  HK$'000 F/&L  HK$'000 FE7T

31 March 2016: —E—~FE=ZA=+—H:

Derivative financial instruments T4 €t T & - 519 519
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at HE-_Z—+t&=-A=+—H8 A&£EIE
fair value as at 31 March 2017. LWAFEHEZEHEE-

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value TN WBEERBEERETMNATE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no HAEFTRARE—HRE_H2BER IE
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and BAREBHE=RE(ZT—X F &)

financial liabilities (2016: Nil).
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36.

37.

220

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

As at 31 March 2017, payables for additions of items of
property, plant and equipment of HK$25,867,000 (2016:
HK$39,133,000) were not yet settled.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise cash and time deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as accounts and bills
receivable, other receivables, accounts and bills payable
and other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also entered into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose was to manage the currency risks arising from the
Group’s operations. It is, and has been throughout the year
under review, the Group’s policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.
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TEFRERS

R-E—+E=ZF=+—H AEVE
BN 51E A e BR1E25,867,00058 7T ( —
T — X% 1 39,133,00058 7T ) IR 1~ »

MEEEERE B ERBE

AEBzIT2ZSRTE - RITEATAN B
RASIEMEFR - ZFEMTAZIER
BENBAEEEBREE -AKEEZHEA
REERELCHMUBEERAR  WE
WERRREE  HMaBUIERTE A RENE
ARBREREMEMNRES -

AEBMUNMETARS T EREEN
BN -FIUARRSCBENREEARE
BEGREELZEBRER REBEQEFE
N AKBEZEREBTEEEMTAZE
B oMt mAE-ERK-

AEBZEMTIEAMELNTI2RAR AT
ZER - NERR EERREADE SR
R -EEFRCEMNYREERSHERRZK
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group has no material interest-bearing borrowings
and believes its exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is
minimal.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
or United States dollars. Given that the Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy on it. However,
considering the fluctuation of RMB, the Group had entered
into forward currency contracts to manage the foreign
currency risk arising from the Group’s operations. Moreover,
the majority of the Group’s operating assets are located in
Mainland China and denominated in RMB. As the Group’s
financial statements are reported in Hong Kong dollars,
there will be a translation credit/(charge) to the exchange
fluctuation reserve as a result of the RMB appreciation/
(depreciation).

B F5 R 2 it 5t
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7. BEREBEREEERBEK &)

R 2= = B

AEBYESAHEEE  WHAGEHMEAR
Z B R R

SME RLBR

AEBZEBEE BERRXZEENE
T ARBRETHE - ER B TR TH
3 7N £R B30 4 B UL PR R SN R R - R
M ZERIAREKE AEEEILED
ERANNER R REEBAES 2IMNER
Be O REBAHY XHEEAMNF
Wit W AARBFTE AR ANEE 28
BMRIABTIEREEL  MARKTE
(RE)BHELRBRERELERE s/
(Fx) °
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37.

222

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continueq)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB and VND exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities and forward currency contracts).

BEEREEAEREE &)

SME R B ()

TRINTEMBEMESERTE 21BN
T AEBZBRBRALEN (EBEEEEREA
& REPHEBEHNZ ATEZE) HRE
HRARBLSEEEXREAEHR 2
B2 BURE -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
= RR 1 A %

FH(THE) #in, CGRd)
%  HK$'000 Fi&7T

2017=Z2—tF

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB /&7t % A R # 82 &
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {78 7T 5 A R H (&
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against VND fi# 7% 7T 3¢ i 7 /& B2 (&
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against VND {47 7T 3 # 5 f& 7+ &

2016 —ZE—R&F

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB i/ 7t 7 A R # 82 &
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {78 7T 5 A R E FH &
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against VND {7 7T 5, it 7 J& B2 (B
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against VND 7 7T 3 # &5 /& F+1&
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and on an individual
basis. Each of the customers has been attached with a
trading limit and any excess to the limit must be approved
by the general manager of the operation unit. Under the
tight control of the credit term and detailed assessment of
the creditworthiness of individual customers, the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is maintained as minimal.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale
investments, other receivables, an amount due from an
associate, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as 46% (2016: 21%) and 85%
(2016: 84%) of the Group’s accounts and bills receivable
were due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers, respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts and bills receivable are
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

None of the Group’s other receivables is either past due
or impaired. The financial assets are included in other
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
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7. BEREBEREEERBEK &)

FERE

AEBEEEAMNBEREERFZEPET
X5 - AEEZBERR/AERAEERKE
TESG2EPHAKEEZERE i
EWREAM S USERERB I EEE
R ERFPHUEEBERE MEBOREZE
BEVAKREEEMBLENE AREK
BRI 2 EEBRKBH R EE TP #IT
ZIEEIE AEEMAR 2 ZRER GRS
FMEKFE -

AEBEMVMBEE (BREAZLERRE
HE AHEERE  HibRERIE R ER
—HBMERRRE ) ZEERRIKE Y
TR MAAZEZZARBEERZEL
A ZBREE

RBEHR AEEREREERATFE R
AABEFZRKEBREBAZETEE
EFRAKRD R A% (ZF—RNF:21% ) &
85% (ZZE—7NF :184%) °

BB RIE R R RS (S
B 2 i — R LB RITRS WA 21
9 -

AN SR 8] 2 EL fth i Wi R TR IE 4 8 HA s 3ROR

B FE AR KRR Z 7758 E T HS &
B
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

224

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., accounts and bills receivable) and the
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash
and available banking facilities. The directors have reviewed
the Group’s working capital and capital expenditure
requirements and determined that the Group has no
significant liquidity risk. The maturity of the Group’s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments, was less than one
year.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. & RB Ak R T
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the KRR BMERAR W BRARERAT
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 T /& T HK$'000 F& 7T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3En @& E

Investments in subsidiaries R B QA & 2 & & 81,340 90,640
Total non-current assets FER BN & EE 4858 81,340 90,640

CURRENT ASSETS & &

Due from subsidiaries f& Yt Hi B A 7 718 483,011 408,128
Cash and cash equivalents 3¢ N £ R IR & 18 B 736 894
Total current assets i 8 & £ 44 %8 483,747 409,022

CURRENT LIABILITIES i@ & f&

Accrued liabilities and other payables JE5H & & & E th & - BR 1B 1,647 1,590
Total current liabilities 7t B & (& 4258 1,647 1,590
NET CURRENT ASSETS i &) & & )F 8 482,100 407,432
Net assets & E /FE 563,440 498,072

EQUITY # 25

Issued share capital & %77 % A& 69,969 69,584
Reserves (note) & & (Mi=E) 493,471 428,488
Total equity #2858 563,440 498,072
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. KRB AR RE (&)

226

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Share

Capital

premium redemption

account

reserve

e

RtrEER - HEERE

B 5 -
AARREHER@RIT
Share
Contributed option Retained
surplus reserve profits Total
BABH BRERE REEA ait

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR THT
At1 April 2015 R=E—HFMA—R 102,291 4,668 66,982 9,075 212,771 395,787
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income
for the year
FRRNIAFERAREEE - - - - 92,574 92,574
Issue of shares %17 {7 15,098 - - (3,639) - 11,459
Shares repurchased & [l % {7 (4,388) 298 - - (298) (4,388)
Final 2015 dividend declared and paid
BERREN —_ZE—RFERERE = = = = (29,088) (29,088)
Special 2015 dividend declared and paid
EERREN-ZZ-HERARE - - - - (13,852) (13,852)
Interim 2016 dividend ZE—~FFHRE = = = - (26,337) (26,337)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments
RSB RN X2 3E - - - 2,333 - 2,333
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016
RZE-—A"F=A=+-BRZZT—~"FEA—A 113,001 4,966 66,982 7,769 235,770 428,488
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income
for the year
FARHNRAFEL2 ARG AR - - - - 179,292 179,292
Issue of shares 17 % {7 11,993 - - (1,7117) - 10,276
Shares repurchased & [ i {7 (5,935) 341 - - (341) (5,935)
Final 2016 dividend declared and paid
BEERRENZZE-—R"ERBBE - - - - (36,072) (36,072)
Special 2016 dividend declared and paid
BERRENZZ—AFERIRE - - - - (27,747) (27,747)
Interim 2017 dividend —Z —+F Ik & - - - - (29,375) (29,375)
Special 2017 dividend —E—+ FH RIS = - - - (26,578) (26,578)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments
RN EREE ARG L2 HE - - - 1,122 - 1,122
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—+F=A=+—H 119,059 5,307 66,982 7,174 294,949 493,471

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in
September 1994, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.
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31 March 2017 —ZE—+#=H=+—H

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

39. TEMBRAAFE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZE—+tF=ZA=+—8 ' ARAEBHK
March 2017 are as follows: BARZFFIBEMT

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ of equity
registration Issued share/ attributable to  Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
TR FME BRTKRG NN
=L REHE HMER ERESE FEER
Directly held EiE#EE
MJ Haig Industries Limited* British Virgin Ordinary 100  Sourcing of raw
ZERBEROARA R Islands/Taiwan US$10,000 materials for
RBEBRHE/ Lk footwear
=) 10,000% 7T REER
EmRE
Ready Luck Limited* British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100  Investment holding
HERRRES US$5,000 REER
Rk
5,000% 7T
Indirectly held B 5E
Discovery Star Development Hong Kong Ordinary 100  Property holding
Limited BB HK$2 REME
MEZERBRAT Lk
28T
Kingmaker (Vietnam) Vietnam US$15,000,000 100 Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. FidE) 15,000,000 7T manufacturing
B2 5E (#r)BRAT NEEREM
Maystar Footwear PRC/ US$43,000,000 100  Footwear
Company Limited* Mainland China (Note (a)) manufacturing
EXEHERRAA" L B A i 43,000,000% 7T BEEREM
(Mi5E(a))
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

39. TEMBRAFE @)

Percentage
of equity

registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
MR TR BRITRGE, PN
=L R B H M ER BERESE FEXE
Indirectly held (continueqd)
MERE (&)
Miri International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100  Investment holding
BREBRKRESIRNERRAT o TR and provision of
28T administrative
services
REER R
R 1T AR 7
Profit Success Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100  Investment holding
MERKRERR AR BB HK$1,000 REER
TRk
1,000/ 7T
Kingmaker Zhong Shan* PRC/ US$30,000,000 100 Footwear
[[EP=RiT Mainland China (Note (a)) manufacturing
RE A 30,000,000 7T BUEERER
(M3¥@)
King Senses Enterprises Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 Investment holding
BEECEARRAT N TRk RERER
18T
Kingstar (Jiangxi) PRC/ US$11,920,000 100  Property holding
Footwear Limited* Mainland China (Note (a)) HEME
FEOIA)EEXARDA FE HE A 11,920,000% 7T
(M3¥@)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
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39. TEMBRAFE @)

Percentage
of equity

registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
MR TR BRITRGE, PN
=L R B H M ER BERESE FEXE
Indirectly held (continueqd)
MERE (&)
Kingmaker (Cambodia) Kingdom of Ordinary 100 Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. Cambodia US$10,000,000 manufacturing
RFFEEH EEk REEREM
10,000,000 7T
Opal Star International British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited* RERARRES gl REER
EEBBERER Q" 17T
Star (1) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100  Retailing of footwear
BEE2N)ERAA o HK$300,000 products
gl TEEHEEM
300,000/ 7T
KEBUHEEXARAR" PRC/ RMB8,000,000 100 Trading and
Mainland China (Note (a)) manufacturing of
FE R E A AR footwear products
8,000,0007T BEEREE
(Pff5E(a)) EREM
It RE BN FERR PRC/ US$8,000,000 100  Retailing of footwear
ZH5BRAAE" Mainland China (Note (a)) products
FE HE A 8,000,000% 7T TEEREM
(M3¥@)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

39. TEMBRAFE @)

Percentage
of equity

registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
MR TR BRITRGE, PN
=L R B HEMER BREAL FEER
Indirectly held (continueqd)
MERE (&)
FEEHNERR PRC/ RMB26,000,000 100 Retailing of footwear
ZH5BRAAE" Mainland China (Note (a)) products
FE HE A AR TEEREM
26,000,0007T
(MF3E@))
LEBEEREERAA" PRC/ US$9,000,000 100  Property holding
Mainland China (Note (a)) REME
RE R E R 9,000,000 &
(M3¥@)
King Eternal Investments British Virgin Islands Ordinary 51  Investment holding
Limited* RERARRES US$100 REER
EER
100% 7T
King Riches Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 Trading of footwear
REBARRAA Mainland China US$1 products
RBERRES/ ERal EEHBEM
A3t 1%
Sanford Resources Macau Macau Ordinary 100  Trading of footwear
Commercial Offshore Limited pidiy MOP100,000 products
TR EEHEEM
100,000}2F 7T
Yingfeng Industrial (Hongkong) Hong Kong Ordinary 51  Investment holding
Co., Limited BB US$20,409 REER
DEEX (FHR)BRRAT Lk
20,409% 7T
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39.

40.

41.

Notes to Financial Statements

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Note:

(a) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under the law of the PRC.

Subsidiaries whose statutory financial statements were not
audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative statement of profit or loss has been re-
presented as if the operation discontinued during the
current year had been discontinued at the beginning of the
comparative period (note 11).

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 28 June 2017.

39.

40.

1.

B F5 R 2 it 5t

31 March 2017 —ZE—+#=H=+—H

FEMBABTFERE &)
B -

(@) ZEMBRAARBRETRERIMAIEE
A%

* BT 8 2 ) B0V TE B 7% AR 3 B A OB &K
EREE &S S 2 A
BRREZ-

EERR ERMIIRRIREEAFERERA
FERAEBEEFEERFD ZANRF L
EWMBAR EERREINEMME QR
BREEHBRITE-

EbE & 58

BRI BRRCESMES BUORKEFER
ERIEEEEBR BRI RIELE (H
FE11) o

B HRR 2 HL A

mReEN —_T—tFA-+N\BEE
EEHERRERM-
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Particulars of Investment Properties Held by the Group

NEBGBEZIREY #5415

Approximate

Group’s gross floor
interest area (sq. m) Existing use Term of lease
B4
BEEEE
Location 1 2 rE@BzER (EHX) BiEAR A
Whole of Block A, H 100% 36,947.2 Industrial Medium
Levels 3-7 Block B and BRE T% F 8
whole of Block C wgm
situated at AL &
No.1 Cuizhu Street, BRI%RE
Cui Zhu Industrial Zone, BRI
Qianshan District, B2 L3712
Zhuhai City, RAR2R
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
Whole of composite building, F 100% 9,225.72 Industrial Medium
Levels 1-7 situated at BRE T¥ g
No. 1 Cuizhu Street, wgm
Chi Zhu Industrial Zone, Ail L &
Qianshan District, ERIXRE
Zhuhai City, BIRBE1H
Guangdong Province, RABRR1-TE
The PRC
Whole of Blocks 1-7 H 100% 22,874 Industrial Medium
Industrial Park of Yifeng IFEE I% g
County, "HEM
Yifeng County, HEH
Yichun Shi, HFETXE
Jiangxi Province, 1-TE 2R
The PRC
Unit Nos. 1401, 1414, 1415 H 100% 330.18 Commercial Medium
and 1416 on Level 14, BRE HE g
Metro Plaza, M
Nos. 183-187 Tianhe R &
North Road, KA %183-1875
Tianhe District, A#gREH1418
Guangzhou, 1401 ~ 1414 1415
Guangdong Province, R1416E
The PRC
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